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2012 annual GeneRal MeetinG
Members are reminded that the Annual General Meeting of the members of Community CPS 
Australia Limited will be held at the Banksia Room, InterContinental Hotel Adelaide, North 
Terrace, Adelaide, South Australia, on Tuesday, 27 November 2012 commencing at 1.00 pm 
(ACDT – Adelaide time). Registration will open at 12.30 pm (ACDT – Adelaide time).

enviRonMental sustainability 
Community CPS Australia Limited cares about its community and is committed to 
environmental sustainability which is why this Annual Report has been printed on carbon 
neutral stocks that contain recycled content and are elemental chlorine free.
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Community CPS Australia Limited is one 
of the largest and most respected credit 
unions in Australia with more than 184,000 
members, 598 employees and assets under 
management approaching $4bn.

Our financial services are geared to meet 
the needs of our members and include face-
to-face advice and transactions, personal 
and business banking, insurance, financial 
planning, tax and accounting, telephone and 
internet banking, Bank@Post, BPAY® and 
foreign exchange services.

a successFul yeaR 
This financial year has been successful for 
Community CPS Australia Limited with a 
recorded profit of $28.2m. This represents 
an increase of 3.9% which will be reinvested 
back into our organisation to improve 
products and services for our members. 

The result confirms our strong position in 
the financial sector and is a testament to our 
strategic direction. 

it’s betteR to bank with us
Each year we monitor our performance against 
major financial institutions using independent 
agency CANSTAR CANNEX. In their report for 
2012, they advised that our members were 
on average $104 dollars better off banking 
with us than with one of the major banks - 
that’s a saving of over $19m in value received 
by our members this financial year. 

custoMeR satisFaction
Our member satisfaction continues to be 
high at 92%, compared to 76% of satisfied 
bank customers*. These figures demonstrate 
that we are a strong performer in a difficult 
market. Our organisation and staff are 
committed to providing Australians with a 
viable alternative to the major banks.
*Roy Morgan Research Consumer Banking Satisfaction 
Report June 2012.

cRedit union oF the yeaR 2012
We are proud to have been named Credit 
Union of the Year 2012 by Money magazine 
for the second time. The title recognises 
our outstanding services, competitive 
products and strong market performance in 
challenging market conditions. 

The award reviewed over 200 financial 
institutions and 16,000 products, and 
acknowledges Community CPS Australia 
Limited as a profitable, competitive financial 
institution that not only offers outstanding 
products to its members but also provides 
grassroots community support.

ouR Foundation  
suppoRtinG the coMMunity
Our commitment to the community is at 
the heart of everything we do. In 2007 we 
established the Community CPS Foundation 
which has contributed more than $6.8m to 
our local communities over the past 5 years, 
including more than $1.17m in grants and 
donations.

The Foundation continues to be instrumental 
in providing assistance to our communities. 
In early 2012 the Wagga region was 
devastated by flood waters, leaving many 
families impacted. We teamed up with the 
Mayor of Wagga and the St Vincent de Paul 
Society to create the Wagga Wagga Mayor’s 
Flood Appeal. The appeal raised more than 
$247,000 assisting over 200 flood affected 
families, and is a true testimony to the power 
of the community. 

coMMunity volunteeRs
Volunteering plays an important role in the 
communities in which we live and work, with 
over 713 million hours dedicated each year in 
Australia to volunteering.

Our Community Volunteers program 
promotes volunteer roles in partnership 
with Volunteer SA&NT, Volunteer ACT, 
Volunteering WA and the Hunter Volunteer 
Centre. By matching members with 
volunteering vacancies, we are ensuring the 
ongoing growth and enhancement of much 
needed services in local communities. 

coMMunity RewaRd account
In January 2012 we introduced the 
Community Reward Account. The Community 
Reward Account is a savings account that 
delivers benefits to our members while 
allowing them to generously support local 
charities, not-for-profits and community 
groups in their region. 

In 2011/12 the Community Reward Account 
provided $155,000 back to local not-for-
profit organisations. 

The account provides valuable financial 
support to communities, and also encourages 
healthy saving habits for members. 

bankinG Made easy
Mobile apps have been embraced by the 
organisation, with the launch of our first 
iPhone app in January 2012. This was 
quickly followed by the launch of both our 
iPad and Android apps. The popularity of 
banking on the go has been significantly 
positive with our members this financial year.

a new way to keep in touch 
We have introduced a new way of keeping 
in touch with our members and community 
partners through the launch of our 
‘We’re Listening’ social networks found 
on Facebook, Twitter and our Blog. Our 
members connect with us by visiting our 
website and following the links to join. 

ouR vision
Our vision is to be the country’s leading 
member-owned credit union, renowned 
for improving members’ lives and the 
communities we share.

ouR puRpose
Creating and returning value to members 
through financial and community partnerships.

ouR values
Members First
Our members and their prosperity are 
paramount to our mutual success.

community
Healthy, strong communities enable our 
members to prosper.

Mutuality
We value the shared benefits from the 
mutually beneficial relationships we have  
with our members.

integrity
Our credit union’s foundation of trust and 
confidence is built by dealing honestly and 
fairly with our members and the community.

A snApsHot  
of ouR YeAR 

We ARe pRoud of 
ouR ACHievements
Community CPS recorded a profit of $28.2m. 

Cannex reported our members were on average $104 better off banking with us  
than one of the major banks – that’s $19m in value back to our members.

Community CPS member satisfaction rating was 92%. 

Named Credit Union of the Year 2012 by Money magazine - for the second time. 

Since 2007, we have contributed more than $6.8m to our local communities,  
raised more than $1.17m in grants and donations.

Launched Wagga Wagga Mayor’s Flood Appeal which raised more than $247,000 
and assisted over 200 flood affected families. 

Launched Community Volunteers, a program that connects our members and the community 
with local charities, community groups and not-for-profit organisations.

The Community Reward Account, with the generous support of our members,  
provided $155,000 back into the communities in which we live and work.

Launched our iPhone, iPad and Android apps.

Launched our ‘We’re Listening’ Facebook, Twitter and Blog sites.
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RepoRt fRom  
tHe CHAiR And Ceo

Despite difficult market conditions, the 
2011/12 financial year has been another 
great year for Community CPS Australia 
Limited, with strong gains made not only as 
a business, but also in new products and our 
community involvement.

We are very pleased to share our strong 
results with you, commencing with the 
Groups’ after tax profit, which grew by 3.9% 
to $28.2m, reaffirming our strong position in 
the marketplace. 

Such a solid performance is testament to our 
strategic direction, the commitment of our 
people and the support of our members in a 
rapidly changing environment.

Our growth continues to be driven by an 
intense commitment to return value to our 
members through our business model and 
value proposition. Despite the uncertainty and 
changes occurring within the financial sector, 
we have remained focused on providing the 
best possible solutions to those who trust us 
with their finances. 

The past financial year has been the first full 
year since our merger with Wagga Mutual 
Credit Union in New South Wales, which has 
contributed $92.2m to our balance sheet. 

For Community CPS Australia Limited, assets 
under management have grown by 4.0% to  
$3.6bn from our operations throughout South 
Australia, the Australian Capital Territory, 
Western Australia and New South Wales.

This result has been achieved despite interest 
margins that have contracted slightly due to 
higher cost of deposits. 

We have also held our cost-to-income ratio to 
below 66% from last year, which means our 
income growth directly supports our bottom 
line. Additionally, our capital adequacy - a 
measure of financial strength - remains high 
at 16.1%.

In the 2011/12 financial year, we have 
recorded new lending worth $668m which 
was below initial expectations but in line with 
the sector’s performance due to Australia’s 
flat real estate market.

Credit quality remained sound, with total 
impairment losses decreasing by 6% to 
$1.39m. Impaired loans decreased from 
0.84% of total loans to 0.69%, a testament 
to our commitment to responsible lending. 

Overall, our member deposits increased 
by 6.9%, more than fully funding our new 
lending commitments for the year.

The challenges for the wider financial sector 
have continued in 2011/12, with tight 
margins and a tough funding environment 
continuing to prevail for the finance sector.

Eastwoods Wealth Management has an 
outstanding reputation in the industry, having 
won Licencee Select SA Dealer of the Year 
2012. This follows winning the Licencee 
Select National Financial Planning Practice of 
the Year by Securitor Financial Group several 
times in the past.

This year has seen our performance and 
operations acknowledged on a national level, 
with Community CPS Australia Limited being 
named Money magazine’s Credit Union of 
the Year 2012. It’s the second time we’ve 
won in this category (2008) and we’re very 
proud to be recognised as the best in our 
competitive sector. 

It’s a substantial success that we could not 
have achieved without the dedication and 
outstanding skills of our staff and the support 
of our members. 

As a member-owned organisation, all our 
profits are reinvested into the continuous 
improvement of our products and services 
and to provide members with benefits that 
include no account-keeping fees, highly 
competitive interest rates and technology 
that improves access to banking services.

We continue to be committed to supporting 
the communities in which we live and work; 
after all, community is not just in our name, 
it’s at our core. In 2011/12, we provided 
more than $1.8m to local communities 
through our Foundation, sponsorships, 
fundraising events, donations and our 
advocacy program.

To further support our local communities, 
we introduced the Community Reward 
Account which provides banking with 
a difference. The Community Reward 
Account is an everyday banking offer 
that supports local charities, community 
groups and not-for-profit organisations 
by donating a percentage of its average 
annual balance. Since the Community 
Reward Account’s inception, more than 
225 charitable organisations have signed 
up for the account.

In another first, we launched our national 
volunteering program, Community Volunteers. 
This program connects people looking for 
volunteering opportunities with volunteering 
vacancies in their area. Charities, community 
groups and not-for-profits organisations 
rely heavily on volunteers and couldn’t do 
their great work without the assistance of 
their community. For people thinking about 
volunteering, but are not sure where to start 
or how to get involved, we list volunteering 
vacancies on our website.

Following the devastating floods in Wagga 
Wagga in March, our Foundation was 
pleased to assist with the clean up by kick-
starting the Wagga Wagga Mayor’s Flood 
Appeal with a donation of $50,000. The 
wonderful support of the local community 
meant that more than $247,000 was raised 
and distributed to the flood victims to help 
them get back on their feet.

Our sincere thanks go to our members for 
their continued generosity in supporting 
our community initiatives, and to our staff 
who share our commitment and give back 
to the regions in which they live and work. 

Our high member satisfaction level of 92% is 
a testament to the outstanding performance 
of our loyal and dedicated staff, who remain 
focused on providing the best possible 
service to our members. 

Our Directors and staff also contribute to 
creating a flexible, values-based environment 
focused on members while allowing our 
business to grow. The past financial year has 
been a successful one for our credit union, 
and we thank them for their dedication in 
making Community CPS Australia Limited 
a successful member-owned financial 
institution that offers Australians a real 
alternative to the major banks. 

The financial services sector will undergo 
significant change in the years ahead; 
this will be driven by a number of factors, 
including the world’s economy, consumer 
behaviour, technological advances, 
regulatory environment and customer high 
expectations of financial institutions and 
their services. 

We believe the strategy we have developed to 
navigate us through these turbulent times is 
proving very effective, and we will continue to 
build strong relationships with our members, 
our staff and the communities in which we 
operate. We look forward to another exciting 
and successful year with the owners of our 
business - our 184,000 members.

Christopher M Doogan AM 
Chair

Robert Keogh 
Chief Executive Officer

7.50%

7.00%

8.00%

standaRd vaRiable  
inteRest Rate

 Sept 11 Dec 11 Mar 12 June 126.50%

Community CPS Interest Rate 
Big 4 Banks’ Average Interest Rate

$30.0m

coMMunity cps austRalia 
liMited pRoFitability

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

$25.0m

$20.0m

$15.0m
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boARd of 
diReCtoRs CHRistopHeR mAttHeW 

doogAn, Am 
CHAiR

Chris joined the Community CPS Australia 
Limited Board in 2006 and was elected 
Deputy Chair in 2007 and Chair in 2010. He 
was formerly a Director of CPS Credit Union 
Co-operative (ACT) Limited, a Director of 
Community CPS Foundation Limited, Chair 
of Australian Health Management Group 
Limited and Chair of Law Courts Limited. He 
is currently Chair of the Centre for Customs 
and Excise Studies, an Adjunct Professor 
of Law, the Principal Member (Chair) of the 
Commonwealth Statutory Fishing Rights 
Allocation Review Panel, a member of the 
Commonwealth Tax Practitioners Board, 
a member of the ACT Legal Practitioners 
Admission Board and a member of the 
ACT Rugby Judiciary. He is a Barrister and 
holds degrees in Administration and Law 
(honours), is a Fellow of the Australian 
Institute of Management, a Fellow of the 
Australasian Mutuals Institute, a Fellow 
of the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors and a past Defence Fellow. Chris 
is a member of the Board Governance and 
Remuneration Committee and Chair of the 
Nomination Committee. He is also a Director 
of Eastwoods Group Ltd, Eastwoods Wealth 
Management Pty Ltd, Eastwoods Accounting 
and Taxation Pty Ltd, and CPS Waymouth 
Pty Ltd.

Anne mARee o’donnell  
deputY CHAiR

Anne is the Deputy Chair of Community CPS 
Australia Limited, having joined the Board in 
2006, and was formerly a Director of CPS 
Credit Union Co-operative (ACT) Limited. 
She is a professional non-executive Director 
and her current directorships include Equity 
Trustees Ltd and Grain Growers Ltd. She is 
also a member of the Compliance Committee 
of UBS Global Asset Management (Australia) 
Ltd and the Audit and Evaluation Committee 
of IP Australia. Anne has extensive experience 
in the ADI and Funds Management sectors. 
Her past executive roles include 9 years as 
the Chief Executive Officer of Australian 
Ethical Investment Ltd and some 20 years 
with the ANZ Banking Group Ltd. Anne holds 
a Master of Business Administration degree 
and a Bachelor of Arts, Banking and Finance 
degree. She is a Fellow of the Financial 
Services Institute of Australasia, a Fellow of 
the Australian Institute of Company Directors 
and a member of the Australasian Mutuals 
Institute. Anne is a Director of Eastwoods 
Group Ltd, Eastwoods Wealth Management 
Pty Ltd and Eastwoods Accounting & Taxation 
Pty Ltd. Anne is also a member of the Board 
Audit and Finance Committee and the Board 
Governance and Remuneration Committee.
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CAtHeRine Anne nAnCe  
diReCtoR 

Catherine has been a Director of Community 
CPS Australia Limited since 2008 and 
was a Director of United Credit Union 
for 10 years prior to its merger with 
Community CPS. Catherine is a Partner at 
PricewaterhouseCoopers with over 20 years 
experience advising governments, companies 
and financial service organisations and 
superannuation funds on superannuation 
related matters, financing the ageing, 
financial and statistical models and strategic 
investment advice. Catherine is a member of 
the Institute of Actuaries Taskforces dealing 
with Ageing Australia and International 
Financial Reporting Standards. She has 
been a Board member of the West Australian 
Treasury Corporation since 1998 and is 
currently Chair of their Audit Committee and 
a director of the Government Employees 
Superannuation Board WA. Catherine is 
a Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of 
Australia, Affiliate of the Institute of Actuaries 
(London), a Fellow of the Financial Services 
Institute of Australasia and a Member of the 
CFA Institute. She is a Director of Community 
CPS Foundation Limited.

steven nolis  
diReCtoR 

Steve was elected as a Director of 
Community CPS Australia Limited in 2009. 
Steve has significant banking and finance 
industry experience, having worked for the 
Reserve Bank of Australia for 14 years and at 
CPS Credit Union (SA) Limited for 5 years. In 
addition to this, he has Senior Management 
experience at State and National level across 
both commercial and government sectors. 
His range of expertise includes operations 
management, change management, human 
resources, strategic planning, marketing, 
finance and business development. Steve 
is currently the General Manager at law 
firm Duncan Basheer Hannon. His tertiary 
qualifications include a Graduate Certificate 
of Management and a Master of Business 
Administration (MBA) attained through the 
University of South Australia. He has also 
completed studies through the Business in 
China Intensive School, Shanghai, China. 
Steve is the Chair of the Board Governance 
and Remuneration Committee.

HeAtHeR louise WebsteR  
diReCtoR 

Heather has served on the Community CPS 
Australia Limited (formerly CPS Credit Union 
(SA) Limited) Board since 2003. Heather has 
a Master of Business Administration, degrees 
in Science and Librarianship, is a Fellow of 
the Australian Institute of Company Directors 
and a Councillor for South Australia. After 
a long career in Passenger Transport and 
CSIRO, Heather now has a small family wine 
business. This gives her strong insights into 
the challenges faced by small business. 
She chairs local peak body Langhorne 
Creek Grape and Wine and works for her 
regional community. Heather is a Director of 
Community CPS Foundation Limited, Chair of 
the Board Risk Committee and is committed 
to using her diverse and extensive experience 
to deliver value for members and their 
communities. 

peteR geRARd gogARtY  
diReCtoR

Peter has been a Director of Community 
CPS Australia Limited since January 2010 
and was formerly Chair of Companion 
Credit Union for 2 years and a Director for 
the previous 6 years. Peter’s professional 
career until 2008, was in local Government, 
holding senior management positions 
with responsibilities as diverse as land 
development, business planning, governance, 
strategic planning and community facilities 
management. Since 2008, Peter has been 
self employed and working with clients on a 
range of projects and business relationship 
difficulties. Peter holds Bachelor and Masters 
qualifications in the Social Sciences, a 
Graduate Diploma of Law, and Diplomas 
in Business Management, Company 
Directorship and Financial Services. He is 
an Accredited Mediator, a Graduate of the 
Australian Institute of Company Directors and 
a Fellow of the Australasian Mutuals Institute. 
Peter is also a member of the Board Risk 
Committee and Chair of Community CPS 
Foundation Limited.

debRA lYn goodin  
diReCtoR 

Debra joined Community CPS Australia 
Limited in 2011 as a Director. She runs a 
management consultancy business as well as 
holding a number of non-executive Director 
roles. She held senior executive positions 
in operations, finance, project delivery, 
operational risk and general administration. 
Debra has worked in leadership positions 
in both the private and public sectors and 
was until recently employed as the Global 
Chief Operating Officer in an ASX300 
company. Prior to that she was the Acting 
Chief Financial Officer and Head of Mergers 
and Acquisitions for the same company. 
Debra has a strong finance background as 
a Chartered Accountant and has held senior 
finance executive and CFO roles. In addition 
to being a Chartered Accountant, Debra has 
a Bachelor of Economics degree from The 
University of Adelaide, is an experienced 
company secretary and qualified insolvency 
practitioner. Debra is a Director of Eastwoods 
Wealth Management Pty Ltd and Eastwoods 
Accounting and Taxation Pty Ltd, and Chair 
of the Board Audit and Finance Committee 
and member of the Board Risk Committee.

geoffReY JAmes KnuCKeY 
diReCtoR 

Geoff was appointed to the Community CPS 
Australia Limited Board in July 2012. He 
had a 32-year career with accounting firm 
Ernst & Young and retired as a partner in 
December 2009 to pursue a new career 
comprising Board non-executive Director 
and Audit Committee positions in the private 
and public sectors. He was Partner in charge 
of the Audit and Assurance Group from 
2003. Geoff’s career included specialising 
in financial statements auditing of entities 
of all sizes across all types of industries 
including the financial services sector. His 
role also included advising in internal audit, 
corporate governance, risk management and 
financial statements auditing and reporting. 
He is currently Chairman or non-executive 
Director of 6 private sector companies 
and is also Chair or Independent Member 
of the Audit and Risk Committees for 12 
government departments. His particular 
skills are in financial reporting and analysis, 
risk management, corporate governance 
and internal audit. Geoff is a Fellow of 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
in Australia and has been a Registered 
Company Auditor since 1995. He is Graduate 
Member of the Australian Institute of 
Company Directors, a member of the Institute 
of Internal Auditors and a member of the 
Australian Institute of Management. He holds 
a Bachelor of Economics from ANU. Geoff is 
Chair of Eastwoods Group Ltd and a member 
of the Board Audit and Finance Committee.

boARd of  
diReCtoRs

boARd of  
diReCtoRs
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stepHAnie Ann CHApmAn 
diReCtoR (Retired November 2011)

 
Stephanie joined the Community CPS 
Australia Limited Board in 2006. She has 
had more than 13 years experience as 
a Company Director and was formerly a 
Director of CPS Credit Union Co-operative 
(ACT) Limited. Stephanie has held 
senior management positions in the ACT 
Government Service as Dean of the Faculty 
of Management and Business Studies at the 
Canberra Institute of Technology (CIT) and 
Managing Director of CIT Solutions. She has 
an economics degree from the University of 
Sydney, a Graduate Diploma of Education 
from Sydney Teachers College and is a 
member of the Australasian Mutuals Institute 
and was a Fellow of the Australian Institute 
of Management for 20 years. Stephanie was 
a member of the Board Audit and Finance 
Committee, the Risk Committee and Chair of 
the Nomination Committee. 

bARRY geoRge HAnnA 
diReCtoR (Retired November 2011) 

Barry joined the Community CPS Australia 
Limited (formerly CPS Credit Union (SA) 
Limited) Board in 2001. He was Company 
Director and Chief Executive Officer of CPS 
Credit Union (SA) Limited. He is a past State 
President of CPA Australia, a Fellow Certified 
Practising Accountant, a Fellow of the 
Australian Institute of Company Directors,  
a Fellow of the Australasian Mutuals Institute 
and a Justice of the Peace. Barry was Chair 
of the Board Audit and Finance Committee 
and Director of Eastwoods Group Ltd, 
Eastwoods Wealth Management Pty Ltd and 
Eastwoods Accounting and Taxation Pty Ltd. 

gARY JoHAnnes gReen 
diReCtoR (Retired June 2012) 

Gary joined the Community CPS Australia 
Limited Board in 2006 and was Chairman 
from 2007-2010. He was formerly 
Chairman of CPS Credit Union Co-operative 
(ACT) Limited and helped facilitate the 
successful merger with CPS Credit Union 
(SA) in 2006 to form Community CPS 
Australia Limited. Gary is a Marketing 
and IT Specialist with extensive practical 
business experience including over 20 
years in radio and television industries 
in Australia and England. He established 
Green Advertising in 1980, which grew to 
be one of the largest advertising agencies 
in the ACT. He was the founder of the Mac 
1 Group, which is the third largest Apple 
Computer reseller in Australia, with stores 
in Canberra, Brisbane, Sydney, Newcastle, 
Wollongong and Armidale. Gary is a Fellow 
of the Australasian Mutuals Institute and a 
Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors. He was appointed in late 2009 
to the board of Abacus, the industry body 
that represents the Australian mutual sector, 
comprising credit unions, mutual building 
societies and friendly societies. 

boARd of  
diReCtoRs 
Persons who were Directors during the period 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

We ARe Confident tHAt tHe enviAble RAnge of seRviCes And benefits 
offeRed bY CommunitY Cps AustRAliA limited Will Continue to Help 
membeRs mAKe tHeiR finAnCiAl dReAms And AspiRAtions A ReAlitY.
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RobeRt KeogH  
CHief exeCutive 
offiCeR 

Robert joined Community CPS 
Australia Limited in 1979. 
He held the position of Chief 
Executive Officer of CPS Credit 
Union in the ACT and following 
the merger with CPS Credit 
Union SA in 2006, became 
Deputy Chief Executive of 
Community CPS Australia 
Limited. In February 2010, 
Robert was appointed Chief 
Executive Officer of Community 
CPS Australia Limited. He 
has extensive experience in 
the mutual sector, business, 
financial services, auditing 
and accounting. Robert 
holds a Bachelor of Business 
(Banking and Finance) and a 
Certificate in Accounting, and 
is a Fellow of the Institute of 
Public Accountants, a member 
of the Australian Institute of 
Company Directors, a Fellow 
of the Australian Institute of 
Management, and he is currently 
a Director of CUFFS (Credit Union 
Financial Support Scheme). 
Robert is also a Director of 
Community CPS Foundation 
Ltd, Community CPS Services 
Pty Ltd, Eastwoods Group Ltd, 
Eastwoods Finance Brokers 
Pty Ltd, and the Credit Union 
Pageant Company Ltd. 

WAYne mAtteRs  
CHief finAnCiAl 
offiCeR

Wayne joined Community CPS 
Australia Limited (formerly CPS 
Credit Union (SA) Limited) in 
2001 and manages a number of 
our corporate support functions, 
including finance, information 
technology, business intelligence, 
member support, treasury, risk 
and compliance, change support, 
and the project office. He has 
27 years experience in finance, 
treasury, risk management and 
administration. Wayne holds a 
Bachelor of Arts in Accounting 
and a Graduate Certificate 
in Business Administration. 
He is a Fellow of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants in 
Australia, a Graduate of the 
Australian Institute of Company 
Directors and a Fellow of the 
Australasian Mutuals Institute. 
Wayne is also Chair of Data 
Action Pty Ltd and a Director of 
Community CPS Services Pty Ltd.

JoHn lipKieWiCz  
geneRAl mAnAgeR 
pRofessionAl 
seRviCes

John joined Community CPS 
Australia Limited in 2003 as 
Head of Wealth Management. 
In 2010, he became General 
Manager of Professional 
Services for Community CPS 
Australia Limited which includes 
accounting, taxation, financial 
planning services, and personal 
and business risk insurance 
under the wholly owned 
Eastwoods brand and general 
insurance services. John has 
over 30 years experience in 
the finance industry. Prior to 
joining Community CPS Australia 
Limited, John was the General 
Manager at National Master Trust 
Organisation, Personal Choice 
Pty Ltd, the State Manager SA & 
NT at Astron, and the Regional 
Manager at AMP. He is an 
Affiliate of the Financial Planning 
Association of Australia, the 
Australian Mutuals Institute, an 
Associate CIP of the Australian 
and New Zealand Institute of 
Insurance and Finance, and 
a Member of the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors. 
John holds a Bachelor of Arts in 
Economics as well as a Masters 
of Business Administration.

exeCutive teAm
Ross noRgAte  
geneRAl mAnAgeR 
opeRAtions

Ross joined Community CPS 
Australia Limited (formerly CPS 
Credit Union Co-operative (ACT) 
Limited) in 1993. He has 36 
years experience in general 
management, accounting, 
financial institutions, public 
administration and teaching. Ross 
is responsible for the Community 
CPS Australia Limited business 
units related to credit assessment, 
lending administration, credit 
control and property. Ross is 
a Fellow Certified Practising 
Accountant and holds a First 
Class Honours Degree in 
Accounting, Finance and Systems 
from the University of NSW.

RAY o’bRien  
geneRAl mAnAgeR 
distRibution 

Ray joined Community CPS 
Australia Limited in 2010 
following the merger with 
Companion Credit Union. 
He was Companion Credit 
Union’s General Manager/
Chief Executive from 1996 
to 2010, and became part of 
the Community CPS Australia 
Limited Executive Team on 
conclusion of the merger. 
Ray’s responsibilities include 
management of the entire 
delivery channel and all 
business development activities 
for Community CPS Australia 
Limited. Ray has more than 
20 years experience in the 
banking and finance industry 
and has previously held senior 
positions in both mining and 
the manufacturing industry. Ray 
is a member of the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors, 
a Fellow of the Institute of Public 
Accountants and a Fellow of the 
Australasian Mutuals Institute.

peteR RutteR  
geneRAl mAnAgeR 
RetAil

Peter joined Community CPS 
Australia Limited (formerly CPS 
Credit Union (SA) Limited) in 
1994. Prior to his appointment 
with Community CPS Australia 
Limited, he was employed at 
Bank SA for 10 years. Peter 
has 26 years experience in the 
banking and finance industry 
and holds a Masters of Business 
Administration (Advanced) 
from Adelaide University. At 
Community CPS Australia, 
Peter is responsible for planning 
and implementing strategies 
around the credit union’s 
retail, community and brand 
operations, as well as overseeing 
marketing activities such as 
product and member segment 
management, direct and digital 
marketing, public relations and 
communications.

KAtHeRine stoCCo 
geneRAl mAnAgeR  
HumAn ResouRCes

Katherine joined Community 
CPS Australia Limited in 2000. 
Katherine is responsible for 
the management of Human 
Resources, Learning and 
Development and Organisational 
Development functions for 
Community CPS Australia 
Limited. Katherine has held 
senior Human Resource and 
Learning and Development 
Management roles in Sydney 
and Adelaide and has over 30 
years experience in the finance 
sector. Katherine has a Bachelor 
of Arts, Professional Diploma in 
Human Resources Management 
and is a member of the 
Australian Human Resources 
Institute.
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1. coRpoRate GoveRnance 
at coMMunity cps 
austRalia liMited

The core purpose of Community CPS 
Australia Limited (‘Community CPS’) is to 
create and return value to its members 
through financial and community 
partnerships. The Community CPS 
Foundation has been established to raise 
funds and provide support to worthwhile 
activities in the communities in which 
Community CPS operates.

The Community CPS Board (‘the Board’) is 
committed to the highest level of corporate 
governance and therefore to a high standard 
of ethical conduct. It recognises that by 
behaving ethically, it sets the standard 
for the whole of Community CPS. The 
Board strongly believes that all the correct 
oversight structures of an independent 
Board and corporate governance charter 
cannot compensate for the lack of an ethical 
corporate culture. It is the approach and 
attitude of each Director that is the vital 
‘ingredient’. Community CPS also strongly 
believes that, by operating ethically, it is well 
placed to also be a good corporate citizen.

2. MeMbeRs
Community CPS is a mutual organisation 
which means that the members own 
Community CPS. All members, with the 
exception of members who are children, 
may participate and vote at a members’ 
meeting and in a ballot to appoint Directors 
by election. The Board recognises that for 
members to be able to vote in an informed 
manner, they must receive relevant and 
useful information which is clear and concise. 
A newsletter is sent to members on a regular 
basis to keep them informed of developments 
at Community CPS. Members can also 
obtain information from the Community CPS 
website which is updated on a regular basis.

3. boaRd oF diRectoRs
3.1  Role and Responsibilities
The Board recognises that a clear distinction 
of the respective roles of management and 
the Board is fundamental to any corporate 
governance structure. The Board is 
specifically responsible for Community CPS’s 
strategy and policy, planning and budgeting, 
regulatory compliance, appointing and 
performance of key personnel; and reporting 
to members while ensuring adherence to 
Community CPS’s core purpose and values.

The role of the Board is to be custodians 
on behalf of the members to ensure that 
Community CPS’s capabilities and financial 
value continue to be developed and are 
available to create value for present and 
future members. The Board is ultimately 
responsible for all matters relating to the 
strategy and operations of Community CPS. 
It is responsible for and has authority to 
determine all matters relating to the policies, 
practices, management and operations of 
Community CPS. 

The Board ensures that the Chief Executive 
Officer (‘CEO’) and Executive Team are 
appropriately qualified and experienced to 
discharge their responsibilities and it monitors 
performance to ensure results are consistent 
with strategic and operational goals.

In consultation with Executive management, 
the Board is responsible for the development 
of Community CPS’s strategic direction 
and for ensuring that Community CPS’s 
operations are aligned with that direction, 
with member expectations and are within the 
Board approved risk appetite. 

To enable effective execution of their 
responsibilities, each Director must maintain 
a clear understanding of opportunities 
and threats in the operating environment 
and an appreciation of Community CPS’s 
strategies and activities. Ensuring strategic 
and operational objectives are met requires 
the Board and executive management to 
maintain effective communication, with a 
healthy exchange of ideas and opinions.  
The Board also ensures that Community CPS 
adheres to good corporate practice, which is 
essential for Community CPS to carry out its 
business activities and meet the objectives of 
all members, employees and regulators.

Beyond these matters, the Board has 
delegated authority to achieve Community 
CPS’s strategic goals to the CEO who 
is authorised to take all decisions and 
actions which, in the CEO’s judgement 
are appropriate having regard to the limits 
imposed by the Board. The CEO remains 
accountable to the Board for the authority 
that is delegated and for the performance of 
Community CPS. The Board closely monitors 
the decisions and actions of the CEO and 
the performance of Community CPS to gain 
assurance that progress is being made 
towards the strategic goals. The Board also 
monitors the performance of Community CPS 
through various Board committees.

The CEO is required to attend all Board 
meetings and in a spirit of openness and 
trust to:

• keep the Board informed on all market 
place developments that may affect the 
business strategies of Community CPS, 
other credit unions, mutual banks and 
other financial institutions;

• bring to the Board’s attention opportunities 
that will enhance Community CPS’s 
business strategies and outcomes;

• regularly report to the Board on progress 
towards achieving the strategic goals;

• report to the Board any occurrences of 
material internal control or compliance 
failures; and

• have knowledge of and review detailed 
figures, contracts and other information 
about Community CPS’s affairs and 
financial position and summarise 
such information for the Board where 
appropriate.

To ensure high standards are maintained, the 
Board’s conduct and processes are guided by 
the Community CPS Corporate Governance 
Charter, which sets out Community CPS’s 
principles for good governance.

The Community CPS Corporate Governance 
Charter is accessible via the corporate 
governance section of the Community CPS 
website: (http://www.communitycps.com.au/
aspx/corporate_governance).

CoRpoRAte  
goveRnAnCe

CoRpoRAte  
goveRnAnCe
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3.2 coMposition

To enable the Board to undertake all of its 
functions, it is necessary to have a well-
structured Board. The majority of Community 
CPS Directors must be Directors elected by 
members and elected Directors are required 
to be members of Community CPS. The 
Board currently has 8 members, 6 being 
elected Directors and 2 being appointed 
Directors. All are Non-Executive Directors.

diRectoR yeaR
 elected

Christopher Doogan (Chair) 2006

Peter Gogarty 2010

Debra Goodin 2011 
(Appointed)

Geoffrey Knuckey 2012 
(Appointed)

Catherine Nance 2008

Steven Nolis 2009

Anne O’Donnell (Deputy Chair) 2006

Heather Webster 2003

Details for each of the Directors is provided 
on pages 8-12. 

During the year, there were a number of 
changes to the composition of the Board. 
Debra Goodin was appointed in August 2011. 
Geoffrey Knuckey was appointed in July 
2012. Stephanie Chapman and Barry Hanna 
retired in November 2011 and Gary Green 
retired in June 2012.

3.3 tenuRe

Elected Directors are appointed by members 
for a term of 3 years. 

An elected Director is not eligible to be re-
elected, if, at the time of his or her re-election 
his or her cumulative period in office would 
be 9 years or more from the time he or she 
was first elected, re-elected or appointed 
after 1 July 2007.

A Board resolution appointing an appointed 
Director must specify the Director’s term of 
office. Director Goodin’s term of office ends 
at the end of the 2012 Community CPS 
AGM, and Director Knuckey’s at the end of 
the 2013 Community CPS AGM.

Directors receive a formal letter of 
appointment setting out the key terms, 
conditions and expectations of their 
appointment.

3.4 independence

All Community CPS Directors are 
independent of management and free of 
any business or other relationship that could 
materially interfere with the exercise of their 
unfettered and independent judgement. To 
reinforce that independence, Community 
CPS policy permits any Director to seek 
independent professional or legal advice to 
assist with matters before the Board and may 
receive financial support from Community 
CPS to do so. 

The Nomination Committee assesses the 
independence of Directors and all Directors 
satisfy the definition of independence as per 
Prudential Standard CPS 510 Governance. 
The Board maintains an independence of 
Directors’ policy which is consistent with 
the requirements of CPS 510. The policy 
is available on the corporate governance 
section of the Community CPS website.

3.5 coMMitMent

The Board normally meets at least 10 times 
per year with the majority of Board meetings 
being held in Adelaide and one in Canberra and 
Perth. Additional meetings are held as required. 
In addition to Board duties, Directors serve on 
Board committees, committees established by 
the Board and on Boards of controlled entities. 
Refer to page 23 for committee details and 
meeting attendance.

3.6 attRibutes

Community CPS is diligent in ensuring 
that Directors are fit and proper persons 
to govern Community CPS. All Community 
CPS Directors meet the standards required 
to act as a Director. With respect to the 
appointment and election of Directors, the 
Community CPS Constitution requires the 
Board to establish and maintain a Nomination 
Committee. This committee, which includes 
2 members external to Community CPS, 
must assess each person who is nominated 
as a candidate for an elected Director or

who is a retiring elected Director standing for 
re-election, and provide a report to the Board 
of its assessment of each person. In this way, 
Community CPS members can have greater 
confidence that all candidates for a Director’s 
election are able to competently act on their 
behalf as a Director of their credit union.

The Community CPS Fit and Proper policy 
is available on the corporate governance 
section of the Community CPS website.

3.7 boaRd peRFoRMance

The Board has implemented an annual 
performance evaluation process. Part of this 
process is to ensure that the Board and its 
committees maintain an appropriate level of 
skills, experience and expertise.

The Community CPS Board composition 
and performance policy is available on 
the corporate governance section of the 
Community CPS website.

4. boaRd coMMittees and 
coMMittees established 
by the boaRd

In addition to providing general governance 
through Board meetings, Directors are 
involved in providing specific guidance or 
assisting the Board through the operation  
of 3 standing Board committees and  
one committee established by the Board.  
In accordance with the Community CPS 
Constitution, the Board may establish one or 
more committees consisting of such number 
of Directors as it considers appropriate.

Committees are structured to ensure they have 
the qualifications and experience to execute 
their responsibilities. With the exception of 
the Nomination Committee, membership 
of each committee comprises appropriate 
Directors plus, by invitation, the CEO attends 
committee meetings. At least 2 members of 
the Nomination Committee must be persons 
who are independent of Community CPS. 
Other executive officers may attend Board 
and Board committee meetings by invitation. 
Executive management attendance promotes 
effective communications and governance, 
plus it provides contemporary finance industry 
experience to complement Directors’ broader 
perspectives.

4.1 boaRd audit and Finance 
coMMittee

This Committee considers any matters 
relating to the financial affairs of Community 
CPS and its controlled entities. It also 
considers matters concerning Community 
CPS’s internal and external audit.

The primary objective of the Committee 
is to assist the Board in discharging its 
responsibilities in relation to finance and audit 
and enhancing the credibility and objectivity 
of Community CPS’s financial reporting. 
These responsibilities call for knowledge of:

• the statutory responsibilities of external 
auditors;

• evaluating the effectiveness of internal and 
external auditors;

• accounting and financial controls;

• the efficiency and effectiveness of 
Community CPS’s business systems and 
procedures;

• management processes and controls to 
achieve business goals;

• statutory responsibilities relating to 
financial disclosure;

• accounting and financial reporting 
standards; and

• Australian Prudential Regulation Authority 
(‘APRA’) policies on finance and audit 
matters.

The Committee’s charter is available on 
the corporate governance section of the 
Community CPS website.

Members of the Committee contribute 
substantial experience as company Directors. 
One member is a qualified accountant. 
Committee members’ experience includes 
the banking industry, management 
consultancy, financial management and 
information technology. All members of 
this committee maintain the currency of 
their knowledge through membership of 
professional bodies.

The members of the Committee during the 
year were:

chair  
B G Hanna (to 23 November) 
D L Goodin  
(from 30 August, Chair from 24 November)

Members
S A Chapman (to 23 November) 
G J Green (from 21 February to 30 June) 
C A Nance (to 23 September) 
A M O’Donnell (from 21 February)

4.2 boaRd GoveRnance and 
ReMuneRation coMMittee

This Committee assists the Board in 
discharging its responsibilities in assuring 
that good corporate governance exists within 
Community CPS.

Corporate governance provides the structure 
through which Community CPS’s objectives 
are set, and the means of attaining those 
objectives and monitoring performance.

Good governance is directly related to 
behaviour and relationships, it is concerned 
with embedded values, and about the 
integrity with which boards and management 
go about their business.

The Committee also performs the functions 
of a Board Remuneration Committee which is 
a requirement of APRA Prudential Standard 
CPS 510 Governance. All regulated entities 
must have a properly constituted Board 
Remuneration Committee and a complying 
Remuneration Policy.

The functions of the Committee include:
1. General Governance matters:
• ensuring an appropriate Board and 

committee structure is in place;
• ensuring there is a robust and effective 

process for evaluating the performance 
of the Board, Board Committees and 
individual Directors;

• monitoring developments in corporate 
governance and making recommendations 
to the Board on any changes to 
governance policies and practices of the 
Group that the Committee regards as 
necessary or desirable;

• Monitoring compliance with CPS 510 
Governance, the Corporate Governance 
Principles and Recommendations of the 
ASX Corporate Governance Council and 
other relevant governance principles 
and standards and providing guidance, 
as required, to individual Directors and 
Community CPS as a whole on questions 
of corporate governance and ethics;

• developing and monitoring annual 
budgets for Board and governance events 
expenditure; and

• overseeing the effectiveness of the 
Community CPS Constitution and making 
recommendations for changes.

2. Board Remuneration Committee functions:

• conducting regular reviews and making 
recommendations to the Board on the 
Community CPS Remuneration Policy. 
This must include an assessment of the 
Remuneration Policy’s effectiveness and 
compliance with the requirements of CPS 
510 Governance;

• making annual recommendations to 
the Board on the remuneration of the 
CEO, direct reports of the CEO (i.e. 
executive managers) and other persons 
whose activities may in the Committee’s 
opinion affect the financial soundness of 
Community CPS; and

 • making annual recommendations to 
the Board on the remuneration of the 
categories of persons covered by the 
Remuneration Policy (other than those 
persons for whom such recommendations 
are already required under the second dot 
point above).

The Committee’s charter is available on 
the corporate governance section of the 
Community CPS website.

Effective execution of these responsibilities 
requires knowledge of:

• principles and standards for governance 
practice and ethical conduct;

• policies and processes for strategy 
formulation, implementation and control;

• legal and voluntary obligations;

• professional liability and indemnity;

• appropriate characteristics and 
competencies of effective Boards and 
Directors; and

• systems for review and development of 
Board performance.



20 21

CoRpoRAte  
goveRnAnCe

CoRpoRAte  
goveRnAnCe

Members of this Committee bring experience 
in fields as diverse as commercial and 
corporate law, human resource management, 
information technology and senior executive 
experience in diverse industries. Three 
Committee members hold graduate 
qualifications and there is considerable 
experience in company directorship.

The members of the Committee during the 
year were:

chair  
S Nolis

Members 
G J Green (to 30 June) 
C M Doogan 
A M O’Donnell

The head of Governance & Assurance,  
G Milani, attends and supports the committee.

4.3 boaRd Risk coMMittee

The purpose of this Committee is to consider 
any matters where there is exposure of 
Community CPS to possible economic 
or financial loss, damage, or injury as a 
consequence of pursuing its business. Risk 
management means systematically identifying, 
analysing, assessing, treating, monitoring, 
and communicating the risks associated with 
a business activity, function or process, in a 
way that enables Community CPS to minimise 
losses and maximise opportunities.

To effectively discharge these duties, the 
Committee members must be aware of and 
understand:

• Community CPS’s policies, strategy, 
operations, structure, including its risk 
management policies and plan plus the 
business continuity plan;

• the assumptions utilised in the 
development of risk management models 
and policies;

• developments and trends in Community 
CPS’s operating environment; and

• the requirements of the Prudential 
Standards that regulate Community CPS’s 
operations.

The Committee’s charter is available on 
the corporate governance section of the 
Community CPS website.

This Committee is well qualified to perform 
these duties. In addition to graduate 
qualifications in a range of disciplines, one 
member holds post-graduate business 
qualifications. Between committee members 
there is considerable executive experience in 
diverse industries.

The members of the Committee during the 
year were:

chair  
H L Webster

Members 
S A Chapman (to 23 November) 
D L Goodin (from 21 February) 
P G Gogarty

4.4 noMination coMMittee 
(coMMittee established  
by the boaRd)

The purpose of this Committee is to:

• assess each person who is nominated as a 
candidate for a Directors’ election, or who 
is a retiring elected Director standing for re-
election, and provide a report to the Board 
of its assessment of each person; and

• on an annual basis, seek information and 
advice as considered appropriate and 
based on the analysis of the information 
and consideration of the advice make a 
recommendation to the Board on the levels 
of remuneration for the Board and Board 
committees.

The Committee’s charter is available on 
the corporate governance section of the 
Community CPS website.

Effective execution of these responsibilities 
requires knowledge of:

• principles of Board remuneration;

• processes for the nomination and election 
of Directors;

• appropriate characteristics and 
competencies of effective Boards and 
Directors; and

• interview techniques.

This Committee is well qualified to perform 
these duties. Between committee members, 
there is substantial experience at senior 
management level. 

The members of the Committee during the 
year were:

chair 
S A Chapman (to 23 November) 
C M Doogan (from 24 November)

Members – directors 
S Nolis (to 23 November)

independent persons 
J Jeffreys 
B M Linn

The head of Governance & Assurance,  
G Milani, attends and supports the committee.

5. otheR boaRd duties
The following Directors and officers of 
Community CPS are also Directors of the 
named controlled entities:

community cps Foundation limited 
P G Gogarty 
R O Keogh 
C A Nance 
H L Webster

cps waymouth pty ltd 
C M Doogan

eastwoods Group ltd 
C M Doogan 
D L Goodin 
R O Keogh 
G J Knuckey 
A M O’Donnell

eastwoods wealth Management pty ltd 
C M Doogan 
A M O’Donnell 
D L Goodin (effective 27 August 2012)

eastwoods accounting and  
taxation pty ltd 
C M Doogan 
A M O’Donnell 
D L Goodin (effective 27 August 2012)

eastwoods Finance brokers pty ltd 
R O Keogh

community cps services pty ltd 
R O Keogh 
W J Matters

6. GRoup Risk  
ManaGeMent policy

Community CPS is committed to Risk 
Management. 

Community CPS’s Risk Management 
Policy recognises that Community CPS 
has a number of controlled entities. For the 
purposes of risk management, all controlled 
entities within Community CPS are covered 
by and must adhere to Community CPS’s 
Risk Management Policies. The management 
of risk on a whole-of-group basis mitigates 
contagion risk.

Common directorships amongst Community 
CPS companies and the management 
structure of Community CPS ensure that the 
risks associated with the existing operations 
and any new developments of the individual 
entities are evaluated and managed with 
a view to minimising the risk exposure of 
Community CPS.

An element of Community CPS’s risk 
management practices is a comprehensive 
corporate insurance program.

On an annual basis the CEO provides APRA 
with a ‘declaration’, endorsed by the Board, 
attesting that for the financial year past:

• the key risks facing Community CPS and 
Community CPS Australia Limited have 
been identified;

• systems have been established to monitor 
and manage those risks;

• these risk management systems are 
operating effectively; and

• the risk management systems descriptions 
provided to APRA are accurate and 
current.

The Community CPS Risk Management 
Policy is available on the corporate 
governance section of the Community CPS 
website.

7. conFlicts oF inteRest
Community CPS maintains a conflicts of 
interest policy, and the purpose of this policy 
is to ensure that:

• an executive officer who has a material 
personal interest in the subject matter of a 
Board submission declares that interest via 
an appropriate notation in the submission 
so that the Board is fully aware of the 
interest; and

• Directors comply with their legal 
obligations to disclose any material 
personal interests that they have in 
a matter that relates to the affairs of 
Community CPS and its controlled entities.

The Community CPS conflicts of interest 
policy is available on the corporate governance 
section of the Community CPS website.

8. ethical standaRds 
The Board plays a key role in upholding the 
core values of credit unions and promoting 
high standards of corporate and business 
ethics. Community CPS’s policy is that its 
Directors and staff maintain the highest 
ethical standards in line with the Community 
CPS code of conduct. Community CPS also 
adheres to the Mutual Banking Code of 
Practice.

The Community CPS code of conduct is 
available on the corporate governance 
section of the Community CPS website.

9. ReMuneRation oF 
diRectoRs and executives

It is Community CPS Policy that each Director 
and executive officer position be remunerated 
at a level that is appropriate to the role and its 
responsibilities, with the objective of attracting 
and retaining good quality people who will 
maintain Community CPS’s viability and 
development. All remuneration is provided 
by way of salary or salary-sacrifice package 
components, with no equity-based benefits.

Remuneration for Directors is assessed 
annually following reference to industry 
benchmarking information and to external 
consultants. No component of any Director’s 
remuneration is related to the performance 
of Community CPS and, other than statutory 
superannuation contributions, there are no 
schemes for Directors’ retirement benefits.

Executive Officers remuneration is based on:

• the work value of the role, comprising 
requirements for expertise and judgement 
plus the degree of accountability; and

• fair market levels, based on information 
provided by professional remuneration 
consultants.

During the year each Director received 
pro rata fees based on an annual amount 
of $52,000. A loading was paid to those 
Directors who occupied additional roles 
(eg. Chair of a Committee or Chair of the 
Board) in recognition of the regular additional 
workload involved in performing those roles.

10. diRectoRs’ developMent 
and education

The Board is conscious of its obligations to 
regulators and members and is committed 
to ongoing training and attendance at 
relevant conferences and seminars. Only 
by continuing to keep abreast of issues that 
have an impact on the business can the 
Board fulfil its responsibilities.

11. peRFoRMance 
developMent

The Board undertakes periodic reviews and 
analysis of its conduct and performance 
and each Director also partakes in a cycle 
of reviewing and analysing their personal 
contributions. Plans are developed and 
agreed so that Directors will continue to 
meet the high expectations of members 
and regulators. During the year, Board and 
Director peer assessments were conducted.

12. coMMunication to 
MeMbeRs

The Board aims to keep members informed 
so they can assess the performance of 
Directors, management and Community CPS 
and provides:

• an annual report which is available to 
members in hard copy upon request and 
is accessible on the Community CPS 
website; and

• detailed information at the annual general 
meeting (‘AGM’) or any other members’ 
meetings. The 2012 Community CPS AGM 
will be a live webcast so that all members 
can observe proceedings at the meeting.
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The Directors submit their report together 
with the financial statements of Community 
CPS Australia Limited and the Consolidated 
Entity for the financial year ended 30 June 
2012, the Independent Audit Report thereon 
and the Auditor’s Independence Declaration. 
The financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with the requirements of the 
Corporations Act, 2001.

diRectoRs
Individual Director’s details are set out on 
pages 8-12.

coMpany secRetaRies
Gianni Milani has substantial finance industry 
experience. Gianni holds a Bachelor of 
Arts in Accounting, a Master of Business 
Administration and a Graduate Diploma 
in Applied Corporate Governance. He is a 
Fellow Certified Practicing Accountant and 
a Chartered Secretary being an Associate 
of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and 
Administrators. 

Ross Norgate has over 35 years’ experience 
in financial institutions. Ross is a Fellow 
Certified Practicing Accountant and holds a 
First Class Honours Degree in Accounting, 
Finance and Systems.

pRincipal activities
The principal activities of Community CPS 
Australia Limited and the activities within 
the Consolidated Entity in the course of 
the financial year were to provide financial 
services to members and this remained 
unchanged.

siGniFicant chanGes in the 
state oF aFFaiRs
There were no significant changes in the 
state of affairs of the Consolidated Entity 
that occurred during the financial year 
not otherwise disclosed in the financial 
statements of the Consolidated Entity.

Review oF opeRations
The Consolidated Entity had a successful 
year in providing financial services to 
members. Loans under management grew 
by 5.4% and deposits from members grew 
6.9% which, together with securitisation 
activities, provided the majority of the 
funding for loan growth. In June 2012, 
Community CPS Australia Limited sold its 
network of ATMs to Cuscal Ltd as part of 
the rationalisation which is occurring in 
transaction banking.

Profit after tax was $28.2m, an increase 
of 3.9% when compared with last year’s 
profit after tax, and reflects a continuation 
of stability in profitable operations. A 
reconciliation of reported profit to unaudited 
underlying profit is set out in Table 1.

The Directors believe that disclosure of 
underlying profit provides more information 
for members and users of the financial 
reports to understand better the financial 
performance of the Consolidated Entity.

dividends
Community CPS Australia Limited acquired 
D Class preference shares from United Credit 
Union through its merger with that company 
in 2008/09. Dividends totaling $31,471 
(fully franked) have been declared on these D 
Class shares, payable 30 September 2012. 
During the year a dividend of $49,752 was 
paid on D Class shares. In the statutory

report of the Directors for the previous 
financial year, $28,800 was provided for the 
payment of dividends on D Class shares. 

From the merger with Wagga Mutual 
Credit Union in June 2011, Community 
CPS Australia Limited acquired $1.3m in 
preference shares. These shares were 
redeemed in December 2011.

siGniFicant events aFteR  
the balance date
No matters or circumstances have 
arisen since the end of the financial year 
which have significantly affected, or may 
significantly affect, the operations of the 
consolidated entity in the financial year 
ending after 30 June 2012.

likely developMents
Community CPS Australia Limited and 
Consolidated Entity will continue to create 
and return value to members through the 
provision of financial services to members 
and other Community CPS Australia Limited 
clients. Further information about likely 
developments in the operations of the 
Consolidated Entity and the expected results 
of those operations in future financial years 
has not been included in this report because 
disclosure of the information would be likely 
to result in unreasonable prejudice to the 
Consolidated Entity.

diReCtoRs 
RepoRt

beFoRe tax  tax aFteR tax

per statement of  
comprehensive income

$38.972m  $10.779m $28.193m

+/- Fair value adjustment  
on interest rate swaps

  $0.366m   $0.110m  $0.256m

special dividend income  $(0.440)m   $0.000m  $(0.440)m

bonus income from  
alliance partner

 $(0.444)m  $(0.133)m  $(0.311)m

Gain on sale of atM fleet  $(1.573)m  $(0.472)m  $(1.101)m

consolidated entity underlying 
profit (non-iFRs)

$36.881m  $10.284m  $26.597m 

table 1 - consolidated undeRlyinG eaRninGs 

indeMniFication and 
insuRance oF oFFiceRs
During the year, Community CPS Australia 
Limited paid an insurance premium to insure 
officers of Community CPS Australia Limited 
and its controlled entities against liability. 
The liabilities insured are for losses arising 
from any claim against an officer for any civil 
or criminal proceeding in their capacity as 
an officer of the entities. The contract also 
covers officers of the wholly owned controlled 
entities.

Disclosure of the amount of insurance 
premium payable under, and a summary 
of the nature of liabilities covered by, 
the insurance contract is prohibited by a 
confidentiality clause in the contract.

Community CPS Australia Limited has 
not otherwise, during the financial year, 
indemnified or agreed to indemnify an officer 
or auditor of Community CPS Australia 
Limited or of any related body corporate 
against a liability incurred as such an officer 
or auditor.

diRectoRs’ MeetinGs 

The names of Directors holding office as 
at the date of this report and during the 
year, and attendance at Board and Board 
Committee meetings held are set out in Table 
2. Where non-attendance at meetings was 
recorded, apologies were received or leave of 
absence was granted in most instances.  

RoundinG oFF
The amounts contained in this report and in 
the financial statements have been rounded 
off to the nearest thousand dollars (unless 
otherwise stated) in accordance with Class 
Order 98/100 issued by Australian Securities 
and Investment Commission as Community 
CPS Australia Limited has total assets 
greater than $10m.

table 2

auditoR’s independence 
declaRation
The auditor’s independence declaration is 
included at page 25. 

boaRd coMMittees
In addition to providing general governance 
through Board meetings, Directors are 
involved in providing specific guidance 
through the operation of 3 standing Board 
sub-committees. Committees are structured 
to ensure they have the qualifications and 
experience to execute their responsibilities. 
Membership of each committee comprises 
at least 3 directors. The CEO attends all 
Board committee meetings. Details of Board 
committees are contained in the Corporate 
Governance Statement on pages 16-21.

Signed in Adelaide this 27th day of August 
2012, in accordance with a resolution of the 
directors made pursuant to s.298(2) of the 
Corporations Act 2001.

Christopher M Doogan AM 
Chair

debra l Goodin 
Director

diReCtoRs 
RepoRt

diRectoRs eliGible to 
attend 

MeetinGs 
attended

eliGible to 
attend

MeetinGs 
attended

stephanie ann chapman 4 4 5 5

christopher Matthew 
doogan

10 8 5 4

peter Gerard Gogarty 10 10 5 2

debra lyn Goodin 9 9 6 6

Gary Johannes Green 10 10 7 6

barry George hanna 4 4 3 3

catherine anne nance 10 10 1 1

steven nolis 10 10 5 5

anne Maree o’donnell 10 10 7 7

heather louise webster 10 10 5 5

Geoffrey James knuckey - - - -

Christopher Matthew Doogan was granted leave of absence for 2 Board meetings (due to overseas commitments). 

Geoffrey James Knuckey was appointed as a Director effective 1 July 2012.

boaRd coMMittee  
MeetinGs

boaRd MeetinGs



KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member 
firm of the KPMG network of independent member 
firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under 
Professional Standards Legislation.
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Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration 
under Section 307C of the Corporations 
Act 2001

to: the directors of community cps 
australia ltd

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge 
and belief, in relation to the audit for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2012 there 
have been:

(i) no contraventions of the auditor 
independence requirements as set out in 
the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to 
the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code 
of professional conduct in relation to the 
audit.

kpMG

darren ball 
Partner 
Adelaide 
27 August 2012

Directors’ Declaration

1 In the opinion of the Directors of 
Community CPS Australia Limited  
(the Credit Union):

(a) the financial statements and notes that 
are set out on pages 27 to 71, are in 
accordance with the Corporations Act 
2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the 
Credit Union’s and the Group’s 
financial position as at 30 June 
2012 and of their performance for 
the financial year ended on that 
date; and

(ii) complying with Australian 
Accounting Standards and the 
Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe 
that the Company will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they become due 
and payable.

2 The directors have been given the 
declarations required by Section 295A 
of the Corporations Act 2001 from the 
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 
Officer for the financial year ended  
30 June 2012

4 The directors draw attention to Note 1 to 
the financial statements, which includes a 
statement of compliance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the 
Directors:

chris doogan aM 
Chair

debra l Goodin  
Director

Dated at Adelaide this 27 day of August 2012

AuditoR’s independenCe deClARAtion 
And diReCtoRs’ deClARAtion
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independent auditor’s report to 
the members of community cps 
australia ltd

Report on the financial report
We have audited the accompanying financial 
report of Community CPS Australia Ltd (the 
Credit Union), which comprises the Balance 
Sheets as at 30 June 2012, and Statements 
of Comprehensive Income, Statements of 
Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash 
Flows for the year ended on that date, notes 
1 to 36 comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory 
information and the directors’ declaration of 
the Credit Union and the Group comprising 
the Credit Union and the entities it controlled 
at the year’s end or from time to time during 
the financial year.

directors’ responsibility for the 
financial report
The directors of the Credit Union are 
responsible for the preparation of the 
financial report that gives a true and fair view 
in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 
and for such internal control as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial report that is 
free from material misstatement whether 
due to fraud or error. In note 1, the directors 
also state, in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation 
of Financial Statements, that the financial 
statements of the Group comply with 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the financial report based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance 
with Australian Auditing Standards. These 
Auditing Standards require that we comply 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to 
audit engagements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether 
the financial report is free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial report. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial report, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity’s preparation of the financial 
report that gives a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by the directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial report.

We performed the procedures to assess 
whether in all material respects the financial 
report presents fairly, in accordance with 
the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian 
Accounting Standards, a true and fair view 
which is consistent with our understanding of 
the Credit Union’s and the Group’s financial 
position and of their performance.

We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

independence
In conducting our audit, we have complied 
with the independence requirements of the 
Corporations ACT 2001.

auditor’s opinion
In our opinion:

a) the financial report of Community CPS 
Australia Ltd is in accordance with the 
Corporations Act 2001, including:

i.   giving a true and fair view of the 
Credit Union’s and the Group’s 
financial position as at 30 June 2012 
and of their performance for the year 
ended on that date; and

ii.   complying with Australian Accounting 
Standards and the Corporations 
Regulations 2001.

b) the financial report also complies 
with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as disclosed in note 1.

kpMG

darren ball 
Partner

Adelaide 
27 August 2012

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member 
firm of the KPMG network of independent member 
firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under 
Professional Standards Legislation.

stAtements of 
CompReHensive inCome

 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
 Note*  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FoR the yeaR ended 30 June 2012      

Interest revenue 2    236,433   221,245   236,444   221,360 
Interest expense 3    149,213   138,949   149,646   139,483 

Net interest revenue    87,220   82,296   86,798   81,877 
Net fair value adjustment on interest rate swaps 2   (366)  670   (366)  670 
Other income 2   31,184   28,703   25,043   23,368 

Total operating income    118,038   111,669   111,475   105,915 
Impairment losses 3    1,392   1,477   1,388   1,492 
Business combination costs 3    -   890   -   890 
Other expenses 3    77,674   72,456   72,023   67,804 

profit before income tax expense     38,972   36,846   38,064   35,729 
Income tax expense 4    10,779   9,714   10,657   9,518 

profit from continuing operations 24     28,193   27,132   27,407   26,211 
Other comprehensive income for the period (net of tax)    -   -   -   - 

total comprehensive income for the period     28,193   27,132   27,407   26,211 

* The Statements of Comprehensive Income are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements 

independent 
Audit RepoRt
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bAlAnCe  
sHeets

stAtements of 
CHAnges in equitY

FoR the yeaR ended 30 June 2012
share 
capital

asset 
Revaluation 

Reserve

asset 
Realisation 

Reserve

Redeemed 
share 

Reserve

General 
Reserve for 

credit losses

transfer of 
business 
Reserve

Retained 
earnings total equity

consolidated
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Balance at 1 July 2010  956  -  2,962  1,303  5,669  96,217  127,267  234,374 
  Net profit for the period  -  -  -  -  -  -  27,132  27,132 

  Attributable to business combinations  1,256  -  -  -  319  2,377  -  3,952 
  Transfers to/(from) Reserves  -  -  -  128  537  -  (665)  - 
  Share Capital redeemed out of profits  (90)  -  -  -  -  -  -  (90)
  Dividends  -  -  -  -  -  -  (65)  (65)
Balance at 30 June 2011  2,122  -  2,962  1,431  6,525  98,594  153,669  265,303 
  Net profit for the period  -  -  -  -  -  -  28,193  28,193 
  Transfers to/(from) Reserves  -  -  -  84  4,608  -  (4,692)  - 
  Share Capital redeemed out of profits  (1,307)  -  -  -  -  -  -  (1,307)
  Dividends  -  -  -  -  -  -  (77)  (77)
balance at 30 June 2012  815  -  2,962  1,515  11,133  98,594  177,093  292,112 

cRedit union
Balance at 1 July 2010  961  -  2,962  1,303  5,669  96,217  123,958  231,070 
  Net profit for the period  -  -  -  -  -  -  26,211  26,211 
  Attributable to business combinations  1,256  -  -  -  319  2,377  -  3,952 
  Transfers to/(from) Reserves  -  -  -  128  537  -  (665)  - 
  Share Capital redeemed out of profits  (90)  -  -  -  -  -  -  (90)
  Dividends  -  -  -  -  -  -  (65)  (65)
Balance at 30 June 2011  2,127  -  2,962  1,431  6,525  98,594  149,439  261,078 
  Net profit for the period  -  -  -  -  -  -  27,407  27,407 
  Transfers to/(from) Reserves  -  -  -  84  4,608  -  (4,692)  - 
  Share Capital redeemed out of profits  (1,307)  -  -  -  -  -  -  (1,307)
  Dividends  -  -  -  -  -  -  (77)  (77)
balance at 30 June 2012  820  -  2,962  1,515  11,133  98,594  172,077  287,101 

* The Statements of Changes in Equity are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements

 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
 Note*  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
as at 30 June 2012      
assets      
Cash and cash equivalents 5    59,941   62,922   59,386   62,922 
Prepayments and other receivables 6   17,147   29,557   16,494   29,306 
Placements with other financial institutions 7    373,530   377,268   373,530   377,234 
Net Loans and advances to members 8,9   3,117,362   2,932,387   3,117,362   2,932,387 
Investment securities 11   14,255   14,255   16,730   16,730 
Property, plant and equipment 12   7,024   7,414   6,973   7,331 
Held-for-sale assets 13   4,213   5,827   4,213   5,827 
Intangible assets 14   899   675   882   675 
Goodwill 15   3,355   3,355   -   - 
Deferred tax assets 4   3,436   3,722   2,941   3,291  

total assets    3,601,162   3,437,382   3,598,511   3,435,703  

      
liabilities      
Deposits from other financial institutions 16    7,594   6,575   7,594   6,575 
Deposits from members 17    2,954,878   2,763,393   2,958,831   2,767,239 
Trade and Other payables 18   21,296   29,689   20,642   29,158 
Borrowings 19   312,506   358,568   312,506   358,568 
Other financial liabilities 20   2,914   2,327   2,914   2,327 
Provisions 21   36   43   36   43
Employee benefits 27   7,314   6,374   6,388   5,667 
Current tax liabilities 4   2,512   5,110   2,499   5,048 

total liabilities     3,309,050   3,172,079   3,311,410   3,174,625  
      
net assets     292,112   265,303   287,101   261,078 
      
equity      
Share Capital 22    815   2,122   820   2,127 
Reserves 23    114,204   109,512   114,204   109,512 
Retained earnings 24   177,093   153,669   172,077   149,439 

total equity     292,112   265,303   287,101   261,078 

* The Balance Sheets are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements        
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stAtements  
of CAsH floWs

 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
 Note*  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
as at 30 June 2012      
cash flows from operating activities      
Interest received    238,067   223,950   238,076   224,064 
Net increase in loans, advances and other receivables    (186,143)  (235,533)  (186,143)  (235,533)
Net decrease/(increase) in placements with other financial institutions    3,704   (11,292)  2,071   (7,100)
Other non interest income received    31,060   28,988   25,016   23,463 
Interest and other costs of finance paid    (151,403)  (131,865)  (151,836)  (132,399)
Net increase in deposits from members    193,725   102,041   193,832   103,798 
Net increase/(decrease) in other borrowings    (46,062)  185,766   (46,062)  185,698 
Net increase/(decrease) in deposits from other financial institutions    1,018   (28,171)  1,018   (28,171)
Payments to suppliers and employees    (72,985)  (76,024)  (66,080)  (76,021)
Income tax paid    (13,092)  (8,587)  (12,857)  (8,384)

net cash from operating activities 25 (a)   (2,111)  49,273   (2,965)  49,415 
      
cash flows from investing activities      
Net decrease/(increase) amounts loaned to controlled entities    -   -   309   (146)
Payment for other investments    -   (1)  -   - 
Proceeds from return of capital on other investments    34   -   -   - 
Payment for property, plant and equipment 12    (1,685)  (1,398)  (1,678)  (1,395)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment    3,147   84   3,147   84 
Payment for intangible assets 14   (976)  (790)  (956)  (790)
Payment for expenses directly attributable to business combinations    -   (890)  -   (890)
Increase in cash balances via business combination 10   -   4,887   -   4,887 

net cash used in investing activities    520   1,742   822   1,600  
      
Payments on redemption of share capital    (51)  (90)  (54)  (90)
Dividends Paid    (56)  (60)  (56)  (60)
Repayment of capital instruments    (1,283)  -   (1,283)  - 

net cash from financing activities    (1,390)  (150)  (1,393)  (150)

      
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents    (2,981)  51,015   (3,536)  51,015 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year    62,922   11,907   62,922   11,907 

cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 25 (b)   59,941   62,922   59,386   62,922 

* The Statements of Cash Flows are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements      

notes to tHe 
finAnCiAl stAtements

1. summary of significant 
accounting policies

Community CPS Australia Limited (“the 
Credit Union”) is a company domiciled in 
Australia. The consolidated financial report 
for the year ended 30 June 2012 comprises 
the Credit Union and its controlled entities 
(together referred to as the “Consolidated 
Entity”). The Consolidated Entity is a for-profit 
entity and primarily is involved in providing a 
range of financial services including personal 
and business banking, insurance, financial 
planning and tax and accounting services. 
The financial report was authorised for issue 
by the directors on 27 August 2012.

(a) statement of compliance 
This financial report is a general purpose 
financial report which has been prepared 
in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards (AASBs) (including Australian 
Interpretations) adopted by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the 
Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated 
financial report of the Consolidated Entity 
and the financial report of the Credit Union 
comply with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) and interpretations 
adopted by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB).

(b) basis of preparation 
The financial report has been prepared in 
Australian dollars and in accordance with 
the accruals basis of accounting using 
historical costs except for derivative financial 
instruments, hedged loans and Available 
for Sale Assets which are carried at fair 
value. Cost is based on the fair values of the 
consideration given in exchange for assets. 
The Consolidated Entity is of a kind referred 
to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 
July 1998 and in accordance with that Class 
Order, all financial information has been 
rounded to the nearest thousand unless 
otherwise stated. The Credit Union holds 
an Australian Financial Services Licence 
and has therefore applied ASIC Class Order 
CO 10/654 and has presented both parent 
company and group financial statements in 
this financial report.

Accounting policies are selected and 
applied in a manner which ensures that the 
resulting financial information satisfies the 
concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby 
ensuring that the substance of the underlying 
transactions or other events is reported. 

The preparation of a financial report in 
conformity with Australian Accounting 
Standards requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of policies and 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
income and expenses. The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and various other 
factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances, the results of which 
form the basis for making the judgements 
about carrying values of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates. These accounting policies have 
been consistently applied by the Consolidated 
Entity and the Credit Union. These estimates 
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in 
which the estimate is revised and in any 
future period affected.

In particular, significant areas of estimation 
uncertainty and critical areas where 
judgement has been applied are as follows:

•	 Loans and receivables are carried at 
amortised cost, requiring estimates to be 
made of their expected life. The expected 
life of mortgage secured loans is estimated 
at 54 months while other loans have an 
estimated expected life of 23 months. In 
addition, loans and receivables is carried 
net of impairment provisions which are 
determined based on estimates of default 
probabilities and the loss incurred in the 
event of default. Further, judgement has 
been exercised in determining that not 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
securitised loans have been transferred.

•	 In assessing goodwill for impairment, 
estimates have been made of expected 
future cash flows from the applicable cash 
generating units and judgement used to 
determine the rate at which those cash 
flows are discounted.

• Similarly, the obligation for long-term 
employee benefits is determined based 
on estimates of the amount and timing of 
related future cash flows with judgement 
applied in determining the rate at which 
those cash flows are discounted.

• Available-for sale investment securities are 
carried at fair value which is based on an 
estimate of the amount which would be 
exchanged between willing parties in an 
arm’s length transaction.

AASB 101 allows assets and liabilities to 
be classified by their nature and in an order 
that reflects their relative liquidity.  
As this presentation provides information 
that is reliable and more relevant, assets and 
liabilities are not presented as current and 
non-current on the face of the Balance Sheets.
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notes to tHe 
finAnCiAl stAtements

1. summary of significant 
accounting policies 
(continued)

(c) new accounting standards 
and interpretations not yet 
adopted

The following standards and interpretations 
are available for early adoption but are not 
yet mandatory and have not been applied in 
preparing this financial report:
• AASB 2010-8 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards for application in 
financial years beginning on or after 1 
January 2012§,

• AASB 2011-3 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Orderly Adoption 
of Changes to the ABS GFS Manual and 
Related Amendments for application in 
financial years beginning on or after 1 July 
2012§

• AASB 2011-9 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Presentation of 
Items of Other Comprehensive income for 
application in financial years beginning on 
or after 1 July 2012§

• AASB 2011-13 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standard – Improvements to 
AASB 1049 for application in financial 
years beginning on or after 1 July 2012§

• AASB 10 Consolidated Financial 
Statements for application in financial years 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013∞

• AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements 
for application in financial years beginning 
on or after 1 January 2013∞

• AASB 11 Joint Arrangements for 
application in financial years beginning on 
or after 1 January 2013∞

• AASB 128 Investments in Associates and 
Joint Ventures for application in financial 
years beginning on or after 1 January 
2013∞

• AASB 12 Disclosures of Interest in Other 
Entities for application in financial years 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013∞

• AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement for 
application in financial years beginning on 
or after 1 January 2013∞

• AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from 
Consolidated and Joint Arrangements 
Standards for application in financial years 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013∞;

• AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 
13 for application in financial years 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013∞;

• AASB 119 Employee Benefits for 
application in financial years beginning on 
or after 1 January 2013∞

• AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 
119 for application in financial years 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013∞;

• AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from 
AASB 9 for application in financial years 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013∞;

• AASB 9 Financial Instruments for 
application in financial years beginning on 
or after 1 January 2013∞;

• AASB 2011-12 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from 
Interpretation 20 for application in financial 
years beginning on or after 1 January 
2013∞;

• AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Disclosures – 
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities for application in financial years 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013∞;

• AASB 2012-4 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Government 
Loans for application in financial years 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013∞;

• AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from Annual 
Improvements 2009–2011 Cycle for 
application in financial years beginning on 
or after 1 January 2013∞;

• AASB 2010-2 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from 
Reduced Disclosure Requirements for 
application in financial years beginning on 
or after 1 July 2013∞;

• AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of 
Australian Accounting Standards for 
application in financial years beginning on 
or after 1 July 2013∞, 

• AASB 2011-6 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Extending Relief 
from Consolidation, the Equity Method and 
Proportionate Consolidation – Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements for application in 
financial years beginning on or after 1 July 
2013∞;

• AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from 
AASB 9 for application in financial years 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013∞,

• AASB 2011-2 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from the 
Trans-Tasman Convergence Project – 
Reduced Disclosure Requirements for 
application in financial years beginning on 
or after 1 July 2013∞

• AASB 2011-4 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards to Remove 
Individual Key Management Personnel 
Disclosure Requirements for application in 
financial years beginning on or after 1 July 
2013∞

• AASB 2011-11 Amendments to AASB 119 
(September 2011) arising from Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements for application in 
financial years beginning on or after 1 July 
2013∞

• AASB 2012-1 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards - Fair Value 
Measurement - Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements for application in financial 
years beginning on or after 1 July 2013∞

• AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Offsetting 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
for application in financial years beginning 
on or after 1 January 2014β;

The above standards will be mandatory for the 
Consolidated Entity’s 30 June 2013§, 30 June 
2014∞ and 30 June 2015β financial reports.
These standards are not expected to have 
any material recognition or measurement 
impacts on the Consolidated Entity’s 
financial report upon initial application but, in 
respect of certain standards, would result in 
additional disclosures.

1. summary of significant 
accounting policies 
(continued)

(d) accounts payable
Trade payables and other accounts payable 
are recognised when the Consolidated Entity 
becomes obliged to make future payments 
resulting from the procurement of goods 
and services. These liabilities are carried at 
amortised cost. 

(e) borrowings 
Interest on wholesale borrowings and 
other interest-bearing liabilities is brought 
to account on an effective yield basis. The 
amount of the accrual is measured on a 
nominal basis and recognised as a liability 
in the accounts of the Consolidated Entity. 
These liabilities are carried at amortised cost.

(f) business combinations – 
Mutual entity Mergers

Business combinations are accounted for 
using the acquisition method as at acquisition 
date, which is the date on which control is 
transferred to the Consolidated Entity. For 
every business combination, the Consolidated 
Entity identifies the acquirer, which is the 
party that obtains control in the combination. 
Control is the power to govern the financial 
and operating policies of an entity so as 
to obtain benefits from its activities. The 
acquisition date is the date on which control 
is transferred to the acquirer.

The identifiable assets and liabilities of the 
acquiree are recognised at their fair value at 
acquisition date. Consideration transferred is 
determined as the acquisition date fair value 
of the acquiree’s equity interests. Goodwill 
is recognised if, and to the extent that, the 
consideration transferred exceeds the fair 
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed.

Transaction costs that the Consolidated 
Entity incurs in connection with a business 
combination are expensed as incurred.

(g) cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at 
branches and in automatic teller machines 
plus deposits at call with Approved Deposit-
taking Institutions. Interest income on cash 
and cash equivalents is recognised using 
the effective interest rate method in the 
Statements of Comprehensive Income. Cash 
and cash equivalents are recognised at the 
gross value of the outstanding balance. Bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand 
and form an integral part of the Consolidated 
Entity’s cash management are included as 
a component of cash and cash equivalents 
for the purpose of the Statements of Cash 
Flows but as part of Borrowings in the 
Balance Sheets.

(h) deposits 
Interest on deposits is credited in accordance 
with the terms of each deposit and brought to 
account on an effective yield basis. Interest 
is accrued as part of the deposit balances 
which are carried at amortised cost.

(i) derivative Financial 
instruments

The Consolidated Entity enters into interest 
rate swap agreements for the sole purpose 
of managing interest rate exposures in 
the Balance Sheet and not for speculative 
purposes. Derivative financial instruments 
are recognised at fair value. Realised gains 
and losses on interest rate swaps are 
recognised immediately in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income via inclusion in 
the determination of interest revenue while 
unrealised changes in the fair value of interest 
rate swaps is included as Other Income. 
Embedded derivatives are separated from the 
host contract and accounted for separately if 
the economic characteristics and risks of the 
host contract and the embedded derivative 
are not closely related, a separate instrument 
with the same terms as the embedded 
derivative would meet the definition of a 
derivative, and the combined instrument is not 
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Consolidated Entity enters into fixed 
for floating interest rate swap transactions 
that are designated as an effective hedging 
instrument against a specified dollar value of 
fixed rate loan exposures which will reprice in 
the same specified month and year. For fair 
value hedges, the change in fair value of the 
hedging derivative are recognised immediately 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
together with changes in the fair value of the 
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. 
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the 
hedge instrument expires, is sold, terminated, 
exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge 
accounting. The adjustment to the carrying 
amount of the hedged item arising from the 
hedged risk is amortised to profit and loss 
over the last 6 months of the life of the related 
hedging instrument.

On initial designation of the derivative as 
the hedging instrument, the Credit Union 
formally documents the relationship between 
the hedging instrument and hedged item, 
including the risk management objectives 
and strategy in undertaking the hedge 
transaction and the hedged risk, together 
with the methods that will be used to assess 
the effectiveness of the hedging relationship. 
The Credit Union makes an assessment both 
at the inception of the hedge relationship 
as well as on an ongoing basis, whether 
the hedging instruments are expected to be 
highly effective in offsetting the changes in 
fair value of the respective hedged items 
attributable to hedged risk, and whether 
the actual result of each hedge are within a 
range of 80-125 percent.

Interest rate swaps that do not qualify for 
hedge accounting are accounted for as 
trading instruments and any changes in fair 
value are recognised immediately in profit 
or loss. Further details of derivative financial 
instruments are disclosed in Note 33(i). 
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1. summary of significant 
accounting policies 
(continued)

(j) employee benefits
A defined contribution plan is a post-
employment benefits plan under which an 
entity pays fixed contributions into a separate 
entity and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations 
for contributions to defined contribution plans 
are recognised as a personnel expense in 
profit or loss when they are due. Prepaid 
contributions are recognised as an asset to 
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction 
in future payments is available.

long-term employee benefits
The Consolidated Entity’s net obligation in 
respect of long-term employee benefits is the 
amount of future benefit that employees have 
earned in return for their service in the current 
and prior periods plus related on-costs; that 
benefit is discounted to determine its present 
value, and the fair value of any related assets 
is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at 
the reporting date on Australian government 
bonds that have maturity dates approximating 
the terms of the Consolidated Entity’s 
obligations. The calculation is performed 
using the projected unit credit method. Any 
actuarial gains or losses are recognised in 
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised as an 
expense when the Consolidated Entity is 
demonstrably committed, without realistic 
possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed 
plan to either terminate employment before 
the normal retirement date, or to provide 
termination benefits as a result of an offer 
encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is 
probable that the offer will be accepted, and 
the number of acceptances can be estimated 
reliably.

short-term benefits
Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, 
salaries, annual leave and sick leave represent 
present obligations resulting from employees’ 
services provided to reporting date and are 
calculated at undiscounted amounts based 
on remuneration wage and salary rates that 
the Consolidated Entity expects to pay as at 
reporting date including related on-costs, 
such as workers’ compensation insurance 
and payroll tax. Non-accumulating non-
monetary benefits, such as medical care, 
housing, cars and free or subsidised goods 
and services, are expensed based on the net 
marginal cost to the Consolidated Entity as 
the benefits are taken by the employees.

A liability is recognised for the amount 
expected to be paid under short-term 
cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the 
Consolidated Entity has a present legal or 
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a 
result of past service provided by the employee 
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(k) Financial assets and 
liabilities

The Consolidated Entity initially recognises 
loans and advances, deposits, debt securities 
issued and subordinated liabilities at fair 
value on the date they are originated. All 
other financial assets and liabilities (including 
assets and liabilities designated at fair value 
through profit or loss) are initially recognised 
on the trade date at which the Consolidated 
Entity becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.

The Consolidated Entity derecognises a 
financial asset when the contractual rights 
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or 
it transfers the rights to receive contractual 
cash flows on the financial asset in a 
transaction in which substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset are transferred. An interest in 
transferred financial assets that is created 
or retained by the Consolidated Entity is 
recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Consolidated Entity derecognises 
a financial liability when its contractual 
obligations are discharged or cancelled or 
expire.

The Consolidated Entity enters into 
transactions whereby it transfers assets 
recognised on its Balance Sheet, but retains 
either all the risks and rewards of the 
transferred assets or a portion of them. If 
all or substantially all risks and rewards are 
retained, then the transferred assets are not 
derecognised from the Balance Sheet. 

The Consolidated Entity securitises various 
consumer financial assets, which generally 
results in a sale of these assets to special-
purpose entities, which, in turn issue 
securities to investors. 
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accounting policies 
(continued)

(l) Goods and services tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are 
recognised net of the amount of Goods and 
Services Tax (GST), except where the amount 
of GST incurred is not recoverable from the 
taxation authority. In these circumstances, 
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of an asset or as part of an item 
of expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the 
amount of the GST included. The net amount 
of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the 
ATO is included as part of other receivables 
or payables in the Balance Sheet.

Cash flows are included in the Statement 
of Cash Flows on a gross basis. The GST 
component of cash flows arising from 
investing and financing activities which are 
recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are 
classified as operating cash flows.

(m) impairment of non-financial 
assets

The carrying amounts of the Consolidated 
Entity's assets, other than deferred tax assets, 
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to 
determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment. If any such impairment exists, 
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 
An impairment loss is recognised whenever 
the carrying amount of an asset (either in its 
own right or as part of a cash-generating unit) 
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment 
losses are recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, unless an asset 
has previously been revalued, in which 
case the impairment loss is recognised as a 
reversal of that previous revaluation with any 
excess recognised through the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. 

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. 
Whenever there is any indication that the 
goodwill may be impaired any impairment 
loss is recognised immediately in profit and 
loss and is not subsequently reversed. 

(n) income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the 
year comprises current and deferred tax. 
Income tax is recognised in profit or loss 
except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised directly in equity, in which case it 
is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on 
the taxable income for the year, using tax 
rates enacted or substantially enacted at the 
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of previous years. Current 
tax for current and prior years is recognised 
as a liability to the extent that it is unpaid.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance 
sheet liability method, providing for temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the financial statements 
and the corresponding tax base of those items. 
The measurement of deferred tax reflects 
the tax consequences that would follow from 
the manner in which the Consolidated Entity 
expects, at reporting date, to recover or settle 
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities, 
using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted 
at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the 
extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable 
amounts will be available against which 
deductible temporary differences or unused 
tax losses and tax offsets can be used. 

Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that the related 
tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not 
recognised if the temporary differences 
affect neither taxable income nor accounting 
profit. Furthermore, a deferred tax liability 
is not recognised in relation to taxable 
temporary differences arising from goodwill. 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities are not offset.

The Credit Union’s disclosed available 
franking credits are based on the balance of 
its franking account at year end adjusted for:
(a) franking credits that will arise from 

the payment of current tax liabilities or 
franking debits that will arise from the 
receipt of current tax asset refunds;

(b) franking debits that will arise from the 
payment of dividends recognised as a 
liability at year end;

(c) franking credits that will arise from 
the receipt of dividends recognised as 
receivables at year end, and

(d) franking credits that the Credit Union 
may be prevented from distributing in 
subsequent years.

During the financial year ended 30 June 
2011, the Consolidated Entity reassessed the 
financial effect of the taxation consolidation 
legislation and elected that all the controlled 
entities would not join a tax consolidation 
group and be taxed as a single entity. As 
a result, the individual entities continue to 
recognise current and deferred tax amounts 
in their own right which is then consolidated 
into the accounts of the Consolidated Entity.
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1. summary of significant 
accounting policies 
(continued)

(o) intangible assets
Goodwill
Goodwill, representing the excess of the 
cost of acquisition of a business over the fair 
value of the identifiable net assets acquired, 
is recognised as an asset and not amortised, 
but tested for impairment annually. Refer to 
note 1(m) in relation to impairment.

computer software
Software acquired by the Consolidated 
Entity is stated at cost less accumulated 
amortisation. Amortisation is charged from 
the date the asset is available for use on a 
straight line basis over a period of 2-3 years. 

the barton securitisation program
Costs associated with establishing the 
program and each series issue, other than 
the interest cost of the Notes, are amortised 
over the weighted average life of the AAA-
rated notes for each series. This generally 
results in amortisation over 3-4 years on a 
straight line basis and is reflected as part of 
borrowing costs.

(p) investment securities 
Investment Securities are classified as 
available for sale assets and carried at 
fair value. Gains and losses arising from 
fair value changes are recognised in other 
comprehensive income and presented in 
equity. Investments in equity instruments 
that do not have a quoted market price in an 
active market and whose fair value cannot 
be reliably measured are measured at cost. 
These assets are subject to annual testing 
as to whether there is objective evidence 
of impairment (refer note 1(m)). If assessed 
as impaired, any cumulative loss previously 
recognised in comprehensive income, 
and carried in equity, and any additional 
impairment loss is transferred to profit or loss. 
Any subsequent recovery in the fair value of 
an impaired investment security is recognised 
in other comprehensive income. In the Credit 
Union’s financial statements, investments in 
controlled entities are carried at cost.

(q) leased assets
Operating lease payments are recognised 
as an expense on a basis which reflects the 
pattern in which economic benefits from the 
leased assets are consumed. 

(r) loans and advances
Loans and advances are recognised at 
amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method, after assessing required 
provisions for impairment. Loan and credit 
limit interest is calculated on the daily 
balance outstanding and is charged to 
members’ accounts on the last day of each 
month. Overdraft interest is calculated on 
the daily balance outstanding and is charged 
in arrears to members’ accounts at the 
beginning of the following month. All housing 
loans are secured by registered mortgages.

impairment
All loans and advances are subject to regular 
management review to assess whether there 
is any objective evidence of impairment. 
Impairment of a loan is recognised when 
there is reasonable doubt that not all the 
principal and interest can be collected 
in accordance with the terms of the loan 
agreement. Impairment provisions against 
Loans and Receivables are only raised for 
“incurred losses” (once objective evidence is 
obtained that a loss event has occurred) not 
anticipated future losses. Loan impairment 
is calculated as the difference between 
the carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows, including 
possible foreclosure recoveries and 
associated costs, discounted at the loan’s 
original effective interest rate. Significant 
loans and loans in arrears 120 days or greater 
are assessed individually for impairment. 
Smaller and less delinquent loans are 
impairment tested in portfolios based upon 
similar risk profiles using objective evidence, 
which may be historical experience adjusted 
to accommodate the effects of current 
conditions at each balance date.

Bad debts are written off when identified. 
Bad loans are written off against the 
Provision for Impaired Loans. Adjustments to 
the Provision for Impaired Loans are taken to 

the Statement of Comprehensive Income and 
reported with Impairment Losses. Recovery 
of loans previously written off is recognised in 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income only 
when the amount has been received from 
the debtor. 

statutory reporting requirements 
for impaired loans
All loans and advances are reviewed and 
graded according to the anticipated level of 
credit risk. Accounting Standard AASB 7 
Financial Instruments: Disclosures prescribes 
specific reporting requirements of impaired 
loans, acquired assets and past-due loans. 

The following classifications have been 
adopted:

Restructured loans are those where 
the original contractual terms have been 
modified to provide for concessions of 
interest, principal or repayment for reasons 
related to financial difficulties of the member 
and the revised terms are not comparable to 
new facilities.

past-due loans are loans where the 
borrower has failed to make a repayment 
when contractually due. Provision for these 
loans is made according to the period of 
arrears and with regard to the underlying 
security.

assets acquired through the enforcement 
of security are assets acquired in full 
or partial settlement of a loan or similar 
facility through the enforcement of security 
arrangements.

loans and advances –  
provision for impairment
The aggregate provision set out in these 
accounts is the higher of the calculated 
provision and the prescribed provisioning 
requirements set down in Australian 
Prudential Regulation Authority’s AGN 220.3 
and a dynamic arrears-based arrears loss 
calculation, as described in the following 
paragraphs.
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specific provision
The specific provision against impaired loans 
exists to provide for loans that are 120 days 
or more in arrears (being a loss event) and for 
which there is evidence based on past history 
that a loss will occur and impact on future 
cash flows. The dynamic arrears-based loss 
provision is calculated based on current credit 
delinquency, historical default probabilities 
and rates of loss in the event of default.

collective provision
The collective provision against impaired 
loans exists to provide for overdrawn and 
over-limit revolving credit facilities and loans 
that are less than 120 days in arrears (being 
a loss event) and for which there is evidence 
based on past history that a loss will occur 
and impact on future cash flows.

The statutory collective component of the 
provision is contingent upon the length of 
time loan repayments are in arrears and the 
security held. The provision varies according 
to the type of security attached to the loan 
and the number of days each loan is in 
arrears.

Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss in respect of Loans 
and Advances carried at amortised cost 
is reversed if the subsequent increase 
in recoverable amount can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the 
impairment loss was recognised.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the 
extent that the asset's carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined if no impairment loss 
had been recognised.

General Reserve for credit losses 
In accordance with APRA Prudential 
Regulations a General Reserve for Credit 
Losses is maintained. This reserve exists 
to provide an additional reserve against 
possible volatility in future cash flows as 
a result of unexpected loan defaults. The 
general reserve for credit losses is raised to 
recognise that loans that are not currently in 
arrears have a probability of future loss, and 
that loans that are provided for may result in 
a higher loss due to changed circumstances.
The reserve is calculated based on current 
non-delinquent credit balances, historical 
default probabilities and loss in the event of 
default rates plus a calculated stress scenario 
loss for mortgage secured exposures and 
adjusted for expected changes in economic 
default drivers and internal credit risk 
appetite.

(s) Member share capital 
Withdrawable member share capital 
(redeemable preference shares) is classed as 
a liability (at amortised cost) and is therefore 
reported under the classification of Deposits 
from members (Note 17). Each member 
holds one redeemable preference share. 

The Redeemed Share Reserve (Note 23) 
represents the amount of Preference Shares 
redeemed by the Credit Union during the 
period 1 July 1999 to the date of this 
financial report. The Corporations Act 2001 
requires that redemption of these shares is to 
be made out of profit or through a new issue 
of shares for the purpose of the redemption. 
Since the value of the shares redeemed have 
been paid to the members in accordance 
with the terms and conditions of the share 
issue, the account balance represents the 
amount of profits appropriated to the account 
for the period stated above.

(t) other Receivables
Receivables are recorded at amounts due 
less any allowance for impairment and are 
classified as loans and receivables.

(u) placements with other 
Financial institutions

Placements with other financial institutions 
are classified as held to maturity financial 
instruments and are reported exclusive 
of accrued interest. Income is recognised 
when earned. Term deposits with financial 
institutions are recorded at amortised cost.

Investments in Bank Bills and Bank Bonds are 
recorded at cost plus or minus any amount 
taken into account for discounts or premiums 
arising at acquisition. Discounts or premiums 
are amortised over the period of investment 
through the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income so that the investments attain their 
redemption values by maturity date. Any 
profits or losses arising from the sale of 
placements with other financial institutions 
prior to maturity are taken to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income in the period in which 
they are realised. 

(v) preference share capital
Preference share capital is classified as equity 
if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only 
at the Consolidated Entity’s option, and any 
dividends are discretionary. Dividends thereon 
are recognised as distributions within equity 
upon approval by the Consolidated Entity’s 
Board.
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1. summary of significant 
accounting policies 
(continued)

(w) principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements 
are prepared by including the financial 
statements of all the entities that comprise 
the Consolidated Entity, being the Credit 
Union (the parent entity) and its controlled 
entities as defined in Accounting Standard 
AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements. A list of controlled 
entities appears in Note 11 to the financial 
statements. Consistent accounting policies 
are employed in the preparation and 
presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements.

The consolidated financial statements 
include the information and results of each 
controlled entity from the date on which the 
Credit Union obtains control and until such 
time as the Credit Union ceases to control 
such entity. In preparing the consolidated 
financial statements, all inter-company 
balances and transactions, and unrealised 
profits arising within the Consolidated Entity 
are eliminated in full.

(x) property, plant  
and equipment

Assets acquired are initially recorded at the 
cost of acquisition, being the fair value of the 
consideration provided plus costs incidental 
and directly attributable to the acquisition.

Costs incurred on assets subsequent to initial 
acquisition are capitalised when it is probable 
that future economic benefits in excess of the 
originally assessed performance of the asset 
will flow to the Consolidated Entity in future 
years, otherwise the costs are expensed as 

incurred.

Items of property, plant and equipment 
are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses.

When parts of an item of property, plant 
or equipment have different useful lives, 
they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of property, plant and 
equipment.

Depreciation is provided on property, plant 
and equipment and is calculated on a 
straight line basis so as to write off the net 
cost or other revalued amount of each asset 
over its expected useful life to its estimated 
residual value. Leasehold improvements 
are depreciated over the period of the lease 
or estimated useful life, whichever is the 
shorter, using the straight line method. 

Assets are depreciated on a straight line 
basis from the date of acquisition or from 
the time the asset is held ready for use. The 
following estimated useful lives are used in 
the calculation of depreciation:

buildings
Current year Prior Year
40 years 40 years

Fit-out and leasehold improvements 
Current year Prior Year
4 to 5 years  4 to 5 years

plant and equipment 
Current year Prior Year
3 to 7 years 3 to 7 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and 
residual values are reviewed at each 
reporting date.

held for sale assets
Non-current assets that are expected to be 
recovered primarily through sale rather than 
through continuing use are classified as held 
for sale. Immediately before classification 
as held for sale, the assets are remeasured 
in accordance with the Credit Union’s 
accounting policies. Thereafter the assets 
are generally measured at lower of their 
carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. 
Impairment losses on initial classification 
as held for sale and subsequent gains and 
losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

(y) provisions
Provisions are recognised when the 
Consolidated Entity has a present, legal 
or constructive obligation as a result of a 
past event, the future sacrifice of economic 
benefits is probable, and the amount of the 
provision can be measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a provision is the 
expected consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at reporting date, taking 
into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation and those cash 
flows are discounted to the present value 
where appropriate. 

(z) Revenue Recognition
dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right 
to receive the dividend has been established, 
which in the case of unlisted securities is 
when the dividend is declared. 

interest revenue
Interest revenue on loans (other than loans 
designated as “non-accrual”) is recognised 
using the effective interest method on an 
accrual basis taking into consideration 
the interest rate applicable to the financial 
assets. Loan establishment fees are also 
included in the effective interest rate method 
and are amortised over the life of the loan. 
Other transaction related loan fees, including 
loan break fees, are recognised at the point 
of rendering the service to the member and 
reported as part of Other Income.

Due to the short term nature and reviewability 
of Revolving Credit facilities, all associated 
fees, including establishment fees, are 
recognised at the time the related service is 
performed.

Rendering of services
Wealth Management fees and commissions 
are recognised on an accruals basis or when 
services have been rendered. Fee income in 
respect of accounting and taxation services 
is recognised when invoices are raised.

sale of assets
Income from the sale of assets is recognised 
when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset passes from the 
Consolidated Entity to the buyer.

 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2   Revenue      
Revenue from operations consisted of the following items:      
      
interest revenue    236,433   221,245   236,444   221,360 

      

Fair value adjustment on interest rate swaps    (366)  670   (366)  670 

      
other income      
Fees and commissions      
  -  Loan fee income    2,457   2,405   2,457   2,405 
  -  Securitised loan management fees     600   658   593   915 
  -  Wealth management income    3,050   3,053   -   - 
  -  Accounting and taxation income    2,607   2,579   -   - 
  -  Member fee income    8,434   8,132   8,434   8,132 
  -  Other fee income    1,954   1,686   1,954   1,686 
  -  Insurance commissions    4,524   4,207   4,524   4,207 
  -  Other commissions    2,164   1,726   2,159   1,718 
Income from property    609   237   642   268 
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment    1,669   18   1,669   18 
Recovery of loans and advances previously written off    496   471   496   471 
Dividend income    1,781   3,385   1,781   3,385 
Other    839   146   334   163 

total other income    31,184   28,703   25,043   23,368 

      
total revenue    267,251   250,619   261,121   245,398 
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 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
3   expenses      
Profit before income tax expense has been arrived  
at after charging the following expenses:        
   
interest expense    149,213   138,949   149,646   139,483 

      
Bad debts written off    1,485   1,393   1,478   1,314 
Increase/(decrease) in impairment provisions    (93)  84   (90)  178 
Impairment adjustment - Goodwill    -   -   -   -  

impairment losses     1,392   1,477    1,388    1,492  

 
business combination costs    -   890   -   890 

      
other expenses      
Depreciation      
  -  Plant and equipment    1,021   1,231   997   1,210 
  -  Building    205   146   205   146  
  -  Leasehold improvements    1,152   1,325   1,129   1,301  

     2,378    2,702    2,331    2,657 
Amortisation      
  -  Software     585   570   582   567  

    585   570   582   567 
      
Staff costs    34,093   32,554   30,530   29,241 
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation funds    2,770   2,605   2,500   2,330 
Provision for employee entitlements    1,460   619   1,230   497 
General administrative expenses      
  -  Fee and commission expense    8,545   8,123   8,544   8,122 
  -  Information technology    5,303   4,891   5,136   4,769 
  -  Occupancy    3,004   2,636  2,870   2,537 
  -  Marketing    4,158   4,422  4,128   4,357 
  -  Printing and Stationery    687   770  613   707 
  -  Communication    2,564   2,453  2,461   2,374 
Other operating expenses    5,455   3,821   4,782   3,714 
Operating lease rentals    6,672   6,290   6,316   5,932  

total other expenses     77,674   72,456   72,023   67,804  
      
total non interest expense     79,066   74,823    73,411    70,186  
      
total expenses     228,279   213,772    223,057    209,669  

 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
4   incoMe taxes

(a) income tax recognised in the income statement      
Tax expense comprises:      
current tax expense      
  Current year     11,457     9,657     11,272    9,431 
  Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to prior years    -   (143)  -   (143)  
  Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses    (843)  -   (843)  - 

      10,614    9,514     10,429    9,288  
deferred tax expense      
  Origination and reversal of temporary differences    165   200   228   230  

   165   200   228   230

Total tax expense     10,779    9,714    10,657    9,518  

      
Attributable to:      
  Continuing operations      10,779    9,714    10,657    9,518  
      
The prima facie income tax on profit from operations reconciles to the      
income tax provided in the financial statements as follows:      
      
Profit from operations     38,972    36,846    38,064    35,729  

Income tax expense calculated at 30% (2011: 30%)     11,693    11,054    11,419    10,718  
      
  Non deductible expenses    3,870   4,444   3,557   4,199 
  Non-assessable income    (1,058)  (1,997)  (905)  (1,863)
  Other deductible expenditure    (4,575)  (4,521)  (4,327)  (4,299)
  Other assessable income    685   676   685   676 
  Change in recognised temporary differences    164   201   228   230   

      (914)  (1,197)  (762)  (1,057)
Under / (Over) provision of income tax in previous year    -   (143)  -   (143)

Income tax expense    10,779   9,714   10,657   9,518   

(b) current tax balances      
Current Tax Liabilities comprise:      
  Income tax payable    2,512   5,110   2,499   5,048 

    2,512   5,110   2,499   5,048  
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 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
4   incoMe taxes (continued) 

(c) deferred tax balances      
Deferred tax assets comprise:      
  Other receivables    109   53   100   45 
  Net Loans and advances to members    548   575   548   575 
  Other financial assets    874   698   874   698 
  Property, plant and equipment    3,107   3,082   2,961   2,936 
  Intangible assets    831   822   831   822 
  Goodwill    53   53   -   - 
  Trade and Other payables    139   949   136   945 
  Employee benefits    2,194   1,912   1,916   1,700 
  Other    344   578   338   570 

    8,199   8,722   7,704   8,291  

Deferred tax liabilities comprise:      
  Prepayments    1   -   -   - 
  Net Loans and advances to members    869   803   869   803 
  Investment securities    1,790   1,790   1,790   1,790 
  Property, plant and equipment    1,256   1,561   1,256   1,561 
  Intangible assets    847   846   848   846 

    4,763   5,000   4,763   5,000 

Net deferred tax assets    3,436   3,722   2,941   3,291  

(d) Franking credits      

Adjusted franking account balance (tax provision basis)      68,754   57,674  

5   cash and cash equivalents      

Cash on hand and deposits at call    59,941   62,922   59,386   62,922 

   59,941   62,922   59,386   62,922 

 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
6   pRepayMents and otheR Receivables      
Prepayments and other receivables     14,478    25,252    13,796    24,674 
Allowance for impairment    (29)  (26)  -   - 

     14,449    25,226    13,796    24,674 
Interest receivable     2,698   4,331    2,698   4,331 
Amount receivable from controlled entities    -   -    -   301 

     17,147   29,557     16,494    29,306 

      
7   placeMents with otheR Financial institutions      
Bank term deposits    39,033   83,137   39,033   83,103 
Bank negotiated certificates of deposit and bonds    331,159   287,419   331,159   287,419 
Other deposits    3,328   4,212   3,328   4,212  
Term deposits    10   2,500   10   2,500  

     373,530    377,268    373,530    377,234 

      
8   net loans and advances to MeMbeRs      
Revolving credit loans    213,840   229,007   213,840   229,007 
Term loans    2,905,348   2,705,295   2,905,348   2,705,295 

Gross loans and advances    3,119,188   2,934,302   3,119,188   2,934,302 
Provision for impairment    (1,826)  (1,915)  (1,826)  (1,915)

Net loans and advances    3,117,362   2,932,387   3,117,362   2,932,387  

      
Actual expected maturity periods for Loans and Advances to Members are  
substantially shorter than contractual maturity dates.      

(a) concentration of risk      
The loan portfolio of the Consolidated Entity includes no loans, or groups  
of loans that represent greater than 10% of capital. An analysis of the  
concentration of the Consolidated Entity's loans and advances by geographic  
location is provided below: 
• South Australia     1,356,847    1,291,093    1,356,847    1,291,093 
• Western Australia     748,605    733,576    748,605    733,576 
• Australian Capital Territory     530,263    440,146    530,263    440,146 
• New South Wales     405,494    381,459    405,494    381,459 
• Other    77,979   88,028   77,979   88,028 

Gross loans and advances    3,119,188   2,934,302   3,119,188   2,934,302 
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8   net loans and advances to MeMbeRs (continued)      

(b) securitised loans      
The Credit Union has established The Barton securitisation program to provide a diversified and longer term source of funding  compared to 
previous wholesale funding options. The Credit Union sells the rights to future cashflows of eligible residential home loans into The Barton program 
and receives funds equal to the aggregated outstanding balances on all loans which The Barton program has purchased and then subsequently 
issued Notes for investors to invest in. Whilst the cashflows have been transferred, the Credit Union has been appointed to service the loans.  
In practical terms, the Credit Union's obligation is to continue to manage the loans as if it were the lender.

The Credit Union has used Waratah Finance Pty Ltd (“Waratah”) as a vehicle to securitise loans and provide funding for future lending in prior 
periods. The loans in this facility were sold into The Barton program during the financial year and Waratah was wound up in March 2012. 

The transfer of a financial asset is dependant upon the extent to which the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. In the case of loans 
securitised with Barton and Waratah it has been determined that the Credit Union substantially retains the risks and rewards of ownership and 
hence continues to recognise the assets for financial reporting purposes. The balance at year end is separately disclosed below with a liability to 
Barton and Waratah for the same amount being recognised under Note 19 – Borrowings.

The risks associated with the Barton and Waratah securitised loans relate to the potentially variable nature of the cashflows received by the Credit 
Union for servicing the loans. In addition, the Credit Union currently owns the Barton subordinated note tranches and is therefore exposed to first 
loss credit risk in respect of Barton loans. These risks are managed by the Credit Union. 

The Credit Union acquired loans which had been sold into the Trinity securitisation program upon the transfer of business of Wagga Mutual Credit 
Union Limited. The Trinity loans are considered to be a clean sale of loan receivables that effectively transfers the risks and rewards of ownership 
and hence these loans are treated as off-balance sheet. The loans in this facility were sold into The Barton program during the financial year and 
Trinity was wound up in June 2012.

Securitised Loan Funding is provided through Perpetual Corporate Trust Limited  ("Perpetual") and Waratah Finance Pty Limited ("Waratah Finance"). 

 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

On-Balance sheet securitised loans (The Barton, Waratah (2011))    313,897   356,768   313,897   356,768 
Associated secured bank facility    312,506   358,568   312,506   358,568 
The fair value of securitised loans and the associated bank facilities  
are substantially the same as the carrying amount      
Off-Balance sheet securitised loans (Integris, Trinity (2011))    54,452   75,826   54,452   75,826 
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   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
9   iMpaiRMent oF loans and advances      
The policy covering impaired loans and advances is set out in Note 1.      
      
specific provision for impairment      
Balance at beginning of financial year    782   689   782   689 
    Bad debts written off    (1,478)  (1,314)   (1,478)  (1,314)
    Acquired through business combinations    -   82   -   82 
    Impaired loan expense    1,352    1,325    1,352    1,325 

Closing specific provision for impairment      656     782     656     782 

      
collective provision for impairment      
Balance at beginning of financial year     1,133    966   1,133   966 
    Bad debts written off    -   -   -   - 
    Acquired through business combinations    -   321   -   321 
    Impaired loan expense    36   (154)  36   (154) 

Closing collective provision for impairment     1,169    1,133    1,169    1,133 

total provision for impairment      1,825     1,915    1,825     1,915 

      
past-due loan balances      
With provision for impairment    23,461   24,725   23,461   24,725 
Provision for impairment    (1,826)  (1,915)  (1,826)  (1,915)
Without provision for impairment    67,241   50,322   67,241   50,322  

net past-due loans    88,876   73,132   88,876   73,132  
      
Past-due loans with no provision are mortgage loans that are fully secured by  
real property and no loss is expected even in the event of enforcement and  
subsequent repossession and sale.      

(a)  Interest revenue on non-accrual and restructured loans    -   -   -   - 
      
(b)  Interest foregone on non-accrual and restructured loans     71    52    71    52 
               
(c)  Net fair value of assets acquired through the enforcement      
      of security during the financial year     3,270    1,198    3,270    1,198
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10  business coMbinations      
The Credit Union accepted a total voluntary transfer of Wagga Mutual Credit Union Limited ("Wagga") on 4 June 2011 under the Financial Sector 
(Business Transfer and Group Restructure) Act 1999 (Cth). No consideration was paid under this transaction. Wagga's business has been assessed 
for Identifiable Intangible Assets and none were recognised by the Credit Union because their values are not material.

These business combinations with other credit unions enable the Consolidated Entity to offer its members enhanced access and a broader range 
of products and services. In addition, its increased scale will enhance its ability to pursue its strategic goals, further spread its geographic risks, 
improve operating efficiency and provide increased opportunities for its staff.

It is not practical to disclose the amount of Wagga's profit or loss since its acquisition date, since this is indistinguishable in the Credit Union's 
accounts. Had this business combination been effected at 1 July 2010, the revenue of the Consolidated Entity for the year ended 30 June 2011 
would have been approximately $258.4m, and profit after tax approximately $25.6m.      
      

 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
      
Details of business combinations are as follows:      
consideration      
Cash    -   -   -   - 
Deferred Purchase Consideration    -   -   -   - 

    -   -   -   - 

Fair value of net assets acquired      
assets      
Cash and cash equivalents    -   4,887   -   4,887 
Prepayments and other receivables    -   451   -   451 
Placements with other financial institutions    -   11,227   -   11,227 
Net Loans and advances to members    -   70,979   -   70,979 
Investment securities    -   247   -   247 
Property, plant and equipment    -   3,433   -   3,433 
Deferred tax assets    -   965   -   965 
liabilities      
Deposits from members    -   73,891   -   73,891 
Trade and Other payables    -   880   -   880 
Borrowings    -   9,638   -   9,638 
Provisions    -   3,353   -   3,353 
Employee benefits    -   318   -   318 
Current tax liabilities    -   35   -   35 
Deferred tax liabilities    -   122   -   122 

Net Assets Acquired    -   3,952   -   3,952 
equity      
Issued capital    -   1,256   -   1,256 
Reserves    -   2,696   -   2,696 

Net Assets less Equity Acquired    -   -   -   - 
Goodwill on Acquisition    -   -   -   - 

notes to tHe 
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   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
11   investMent secuRities      
Unlisted shares at cost      
  - Controlled entities    -   -   2,475   2,475 
  - Available-for-sale investment securities      1,740     1,740    1,740    1,740 

      1,740     1,740    4,215    4,215 

      
Unlisted shares at fair value
  - Available-for-sale investment securities     12,515    12,515    12,515    12,515 

     12,515    12,515    12,515    12,515 

total investment securities     14,255    14,255    16,730    16,730 

      
Available-for-sale investment securities carried at cost are investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted price in an active market 
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured because the information about these companies that would be required to estimate their fair 
value is not readily available. Available-for-sale investment securities carried at fair value are investments in equity instruments of a company 
in which the Consolidated Entity acquired additional shares in 2008 from a willing seller in an arms length transaction. The 2008 purchase 
price applicable to this transaction was applied to the Consolidated Entity's entire holding as the shares' fair value and continues to be the best 
indicator of fair value.    

investment in controlled entities 
All controlled entities are domiciled in Australia. consolidated entity   
Investment in controlled entities comprises: inteRest
   2012 2011  
name   % %  
Eastwoods Wealth Management Pty Ltd   100 100  
Eastwoods Accounting and Taxation Pty Ltd   100 100  
Eastwoods Group Ltd   100 100  
Eastwoods Finance Brokers Pty Ltd   100 100  
CPS Waymouth Pty Ltd   100 100  
Community CPS Services Pty Ltd   100 100  
Community CPS Foundation Ltd   100 100  
Community CPS Foundation Master Support Fund   100 100  
Community CPS Foundation Master DGR Fund   100 100  
The Barton Series 2011-1 Trust   100 100  
The Barton W Warehouse Trust   100 -  
The Barton A Warehouse Trust   100 -  

      
Eastwoods Accounting and Taxation Pty Ltd, Eastwoods Finance Brokers Pty Ltd and Eastwoods Wealth Management Pty Ltd are wholly 
owned by Eastwoods Group Ltd. Community CPS Foundation Ltd is a public company limited by guarantee with the Credit Union being the sole 
$100 guarantor.

In April 2011, the Credit Union established a residential mortgage-backed securitisation (RMBS) program, The Barton program and established 
The Barton Series Trust to purchase mortgage loans it originated. The beneficial interest in the trust is divided into 2 classes of units, being 
residual capital units (ten) and residual income units (one). The Credit Union holds nine residual capital units and the residual income unit.

Under The Barton program the Credit Union established 2 additional warehouses: The Barton W Warehouse in February 2012 and The Barton  
A Warehouse in August 2011.

notes to tHe 
finAnCiAl stAtements

46 47



   land &  Fit-out &  
   buildings at leasehold  plant &
   deemed improvements equipment 
12   pRopeRty, plant and equipMent   cost at cost at cost total

consolidated Note  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gross carrying amount      
Balance at 1 July 2010    6,645   13,003   17,296   36,944 
    Transfers between asset classes within the entity    -   -   -   - 
    Acquisitions through business combinations    3,665   -   1,182   4,847 
    Additions    95   655   648   1,398 
    Disposals    -   (1)  (225)  (226)
    Reclassified as held-for-sale asset    (6,347)  -   -   (6,347)

Balance at 30 June 2011    4,058   13,657   18,901   36,616 
    Transfers between asset classes within the entity    -   -   -   - 
    Additions    54   844   787   1,685 
    Disposals    -   (179)  (4,400)  (4,579)

balance at 30 June 2012    4,112   14,322   15,288   33,722  
accumulated depreciation      
Balance at 1 July 2010    905   9,996   14,866   25,767 
    Acquisitions through business combinations    420   -   993   1,413 
    Disposals    -   -   (160)  (160)
    Reclassified as held-for-sale asset    (520)  -   -   (520)
    Depreciation Expense 3     146   1,325   1,231   2,702  

Balance at 30 June 2011    951   11,321   16,930   29,202 
    Disposals    (470)  (172)  (4,239)  (4,882)
    Depreciation Expense 3    200   1,178   1,000   2,378  

balance at 30 June 2012     681   12,327   13,691   26,698  
      
net book value      
As at 30 June 2011     3,107   2,336   1,971   7,414  

as at 30 June 2012     3,431   1,995   1,597   7,024  

   land &  Fit-out &  
   buildings at leasehold  plant &
   deemed improvements equipment 
12   pRopeRty, plant and equipMent (continued)   cost at cost at cost total

credit union Note  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gross carrying amount      
Balance at 1 July 2010    6,645   12,449   16,841   35,935 
    Acquisitions through business combinations    3,665   -   1,182   4,847 
    Additions    95   655   645   1,395 
    Disposals    -   (1)  (224)  (225)
    Reclassified as held-for-sale asset    (6,347)  -   -   (6,347)

Balance at 30 June 2011    4,058   13,103   18,444   35,605 
    Additions    54   844    780     1,678  
    Disposals    -   (179)  (4,399)  (4,579)

balance at 30 June 2012    4,112   13,768    14,825   32,704   
accumulated depreciation      
Balance at 1 July 2010    905   9,508   14,464   24,877 
    Transfers between asset classes within the entity      
    Acquisitions through business combinations    420   -   998   1,418 
    Disposals    -   -   (158)  (158)
    Net adjustments from revaluation increments (decrements)      
    Reclassified as held-for-sale asset    (520)  -   -   (520)
    Depreciation Expense 3    146   1,301   1,210   2,657  

Balance at 30 June 2011    951   10,809   16,514   28,274 
    Acquisitions through business combinations    -   -   5   5 
    Disposals    (470)  (172)  (4,237)  (4,880)
    Depreciation Expense 3    200   1,155   977   2,332  

balance at 30 June 2012     681   11,792   13,259   25,731  
      
net book value      
As at 30 June 2011    3,107   2,294   1,930   7,331  

as at 30 June 2012    3,431   1,976    1,566   6,973   
      
An independent valuation of the Consolidated Entity's land and buildings at Mawson, ACT, was performed as at 30 June 2011 by Mr G. Cummins 
A.A.P.I. of CB Richard Ellis to determine the fair value of the land and buildings as at financial year end. The valuation was performed on the basis of 
the Controlled Entity occupying the majority of the building and a sub-lease being in place that valued the property at $4.270m.   
Capital expenditure commitments for plant and equipment contracted for but not provided for and payable within one year $Nil (2011:$Nil).  
There are no capital commitments payable after one year (2011: $Nil).    
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 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
 Note  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
13  held-FoR-sale assets      

    Property, Plant and Equipment     4,213    5,827    4,213    5,827 

    4,213    5,827    4,213    5,827 

      
Buildings held in Wagga and Cessnock are classified as held-for-sale and are listed with a real estate agent for sale. The building at South Ave, 
Cessnock was sold in August 2011 for $1.292m.

14   intanGible assets      
Gross carrying amount - capitalised software      
    Balance at beginning of the financial year    7,566   6,776   7,426   6,636 
    Additions    976   790    956    790  
    Disposals    (1,139)  -    (1,139)  -  

balance at end of financial year    7,403   7,566   7,243   7,426   
accumulated amortisation      
    Balance at beginning of the financial year    6,891   6,321   6,751   6,184 
    Disposals    (972)  -   (972)  -   
    Amortisation Expense 3    585   570   582   567  

balance at end of financial year    6,504   6,891   6,361   6,751  
      
net book value      
Balance at beginning of the financial year    675   455   675   452  

balance at end of financial year    899   675   882   675  

      
15   Goodwill      

Balance at beginning of the financial year    3,355   3,355   -   - 

Balance at end of financial year    3,355   3,355   -   - 

      
Goodwill is associated with the Consolidated Entity's Wealth Management and Accounting and Taxation cash-generating units. The recoverable 
amount of the goodwill in these cash-generating units was based on its value in use; determined by discounting the future cash flows generated 
from the continuing use of these units based on the following key assumptions:      

- Cash flows for the Wealth Management (Forecast average growth is 12.2%) and Accounting and Taxation (Forecast average growth is 93.1%) 
cash-generating unit are projected based on recent actual operating results, the Board approved budget for the coming Financial year, the Board 
approved forecast for the subsequent 2 Financial years and an extrapolated forecast for the following 2 Financial years (based on medium term 
growth trends) to provide a five year Cash flow forecast. 

- The discount rate applied to the forecast cash-generating unit cash flows was based on the calculated weighted average cost of capital for each 
corresponding company using current risk free rates and applying applicable market Beta's, equity, small cap and credit premia.  
(Wealth Management 14.6% and Accounting and Taxation 13.1%).

16   deposits FRoM otheR Financial institutions      

Interest bearing deposits    7,594   6,575   7,594   6,575  

 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
      
17   deposits FRoM MeMbeRs      
Withdrawable member shares    783   805   783   805 
Deposits from controlled entities at call    -     -     2,212   2,209 
Call deposits    1,275,999   1,213,397   1,275,999   1,213,397  
Term deposits    1,678,096   1,549,191   1,679,837   1,550,828  

     2,954,878   2,763,393   2,958,831   2,767,239 

        
Each member share entitles the holder to vote at a meeting of members (except if the member is a minor), to participate equally in any surplus 
upon winding up and to request its redemption at any time. The shares are not transferable and have no dividend entitlement.  The number of 
member shares at 30 June 2012 is 184,420 (2011: 185,308).

(a) concentration of deposits      

The deposit portfolio of the Credit Union does not include any deposits or groups of deposits that represents a material concentration in terms of the 
source of liability.   

18   tRade and otheR payables       
Unearned loan fee obligation    1,092   1,119   1,092   1,119 
Trade and other creditors    20,204   28,570   19,550   28,039 

    21,296   29,689   20,642   29,158   
      
19   boRRowinGs      
Subordinated Debt    -   8,100   -   8,100  
Securitised Loan Funding    312,506   350,468   312,506   350,468  

     312,506   358,568   312,506   358,568  

The overdraft borrowing facility from Cuscal Ltd is secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets and undertakings of the Credit Union. 
Securitised Loan Funding is provided through Perpetual Corporate Trust Limited  ("Perpetual") and Waratah Finance Pty Limited ("Waratah Finance").

Until March 2012, 'warehouse' securitisation Loan Funding was also provided through Waratah Finance Pty Limited ("Waratah Finance") in its capacity as 
Trustee for the CPS Credit Union Asset Trust. Under the transaction documents for this facility, Waratah Finance acquired residential mortgages originated 
by the Credit Union. The acquisition of the residential mortgages by Waratah Finance was funded through loans provided by both Waratah Receivables 
Corporation and Westpac Banking Corporation to Waratah Finance. The Waratah Finance facility was repaid and terminated in March 2012.

Funding provided through Perpetual is in its capacity as Trustee for the The Barton Series 2011-1 Trust. Under the transaction documents for this 
facility, The Barton Series 2011-1Trust acquires residential mortgages originated by the Credit Union. The acquisition of the residential mortgages 
by The Barton Series 2011-1 Trust is funded by Notes issued from the The Barton Series 2011-1 Trust. The Master Trust Deed established for this 
structure does not have an expiry date. The maturity profile of the Issued Notes are effectively tied to the maturity profile of the associated securitised 
loans and has been disclosed accordingly at Note 33(b). 

Warehouse securitisation funding is also provided by Perpetual in its capacity as Trustee of The Barton A Warehouse Trust and The Barton W Warehouse 
Trust. The Barton A Warehouse Trust was established in August 2011, expires in February 2013 and, under its transaction documents, acquires 
residential mortgages originated by the Credit Union with funding provided by Australia and New Zealand Banking Group. The Barton W Warehouse Trust 
was established in February 2012, expires in May 2013 and, under its transaction documents, acquires residential mortgages originated by the Credit 
Union with funding provided by Westpac Banking Corporation and Waratah Finance.  
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 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
20   otheR Financial liabilities      
At fair value:      
Interest rate swaps    2,914   2,327   2,914   2,327  

      
21   pRovisions      
Provision for Dividends      
Balance at beginning of financial year    43   -   43   - 
    Dividends declared    36   43   36   43 
    Dividends paid    (43)  -   (43)  - 

Balance at end of financial year    36   43   36   43  

      

22   shaRe capital      
D Class shares      
Balance at beginning of financial year    866   956   871   961 
    Redeemed out of profits during the year    (51)  (90)  (51)  (90)

Balance at end of financial year    815   866   820   871  

      
Redeemable Preference Shares      
Balance at beginning of financial year    1,256   -   1,256   - 
    Acquired through business combinations    -   1,256   -   1,256  
    Redeemed out of profits during the year    (1,256)  -   (1,256)  -  

Balance at end of financial year    -   1,256   -   1,256  

total share capital    815   2,122   820   2,127  

D Class shares are non-cumulative redeemable preference shares with no voting rights additional to those attributable to the holder's member 
share and are redeemable at the option of the Credit Union. The dividend rate is determined by the Board every six months and paid annually.  
At 30 June 2012, there were 820,100 D Class shares on issue fully paid to $1 per share.
Wagga Mutual Credit Union held $1.3m of redeemable preference shares issued by CUNA Mutual Life Australia Limited as trustee for Australian 
Mutual T2 Capital Funding Trust. This instrument was repaid in December 2011.       

notes to tHe 
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23   ReseRves      
asset revaluation and realisation reserves      
Upward (or subsequent downward) adjustments to the carrying value of assets are recorded in the asset revaluation reserve. With the exception 
of Available For Sale financial assets, when a revalued asset is sold, the portion of the asset revaluation reserve which relates to that asset, and is 
effectively realised, is transferred to the asset realisation reserve.      
      
Redeemed share reserve      
The redeemed share reserve is used to redeem redeemable preference shares out of profit upon a member redeeming a D Class Share or 
ceasing membership with the Credit Union.      
      
General reserve for credit losses      
In accordance with APRA Prudential Regulations a General Reserve for Credit Losses is maintained. This reserve exists to provide an additional 
reserve against possible volatility in future cash flows as a result of unexpected loan defaults.      

transfer of business reserve      
Mergers with other mutual entities are accounted for by recognising the identifiable assets and liabilities of the transferring entity on the balance sheet 
at their fair value at the date of merger. The excess of the fair value of assets taken up over liabilities assumed is taken directly to equity as a reserve.

      

 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
24   Retained eaRninGs      
Balance at beginning of financial year    153,669   127,267   149,439   123,958 
    Transfer from/(to) general reserve for credit losses    (4,608)  (537)  (4,608)  (537)
    Transfer to redeemed member share reserve    (84)  (128)  (84)  (128)
    Net Profit attributable to members     28,193    27,132    27,407    26,211 
    Dividends declared    (77)  (65)  (77)  (65)

balance at end of financial year     177,093    153,669    172,077    149,439  
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 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
25   notes to the stateMents oF cash Flows

(a) Reconciliation of profit to net cash flows from operating activities:      

Profit for the period     28,193    27,132    27,407    26,211 
Impairment losses    1,392   1,477   1,388   1,492 
Depreciation and amortisation of non current assets    2,963   3,272   2,914   3,223 
Business combination costs classified as cash flows from investing activities    -   890   -   890 
Net (Gain) / Loss on sale of plant and equipment    (1,669)  (18)  (1,669)  (18)
changes in assets and liabilities      
Decrease / (Increase) in net loans, advances and other receivables    (186,143)  (235,533)  (186,144)  (235,533)
Decrease / (Increase) in placements with other financial institutions    3,704   (11,292)  2,070   (7,100)
Decrease / (Increase) in interest receivable    1,634   2,705   1,634   2,705 
Decrease / (Increase) in prepayments and other receivables    10,776   (19,646)  12,511   (24,043)
Decrease / (Increase) in other financial assets    366   (670)  366   (670)
Decrease / (Increase) in deferred tax assets    523   1,304   587   1,325 
Increase / (Decrease) in deposits from members    193,725   102,041   193,832   103,798 
Increase / (Decrease) in other borrowings    (46,062)  185,766   (46,062)  185,698 
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions    -   (68)  -   - 
Increase / (Decrease) in deposits from other financial institutions    1,018   (28,171)  1,018   (28,171)
Increase / (Decrease) in interest payable    (2,190)  7,084   (2,190)  7,084 
Increase / (Decrease) in employee entitlements    939   137   721   39 
Increase / (Decrease) in current tax liability    (2,598)  903   (2,549)  883 
Increase / (Decrease) in deferred tax liability    (238)  (1,080)  (238)  (1,073)
Increase / (Decrease) in other creditors    (8,444)  13,040   (8,561)  12,675   

net cash from operating activities    (2,111)  49,273   (2,965)  49,415   

(b) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents      
For the purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and in financial institutions and money 
market instruments readily convertible to cash within one working day, net of outstanding overdrafts.

Cash as at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statements of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Balance Sheets as follows;
  
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)    59,941   62,922   59,386   62,922 
Overdraft (Note 19)    -   -   -   -  

closing cash balance    59,941   62,922   59,386   62,922  

(c)  cashflows presented on a net basis      
Cash flows arising from the following activities are presented on a net basis in the Statements of Cash Flows:     
  i)   member deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accounts      
  ii)  borrowings and repayments on loans, advances and other receivables      
  iii) membership shares purchased and redeemed      
  iv) dealings with other financial institutions      

notes to tHe 
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 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000  
25   notes to the stateMents oF cash Flows (continued)

(d)  Financing facilities      
The Credit Union has access to the following financing facilities with  
Cuscal Ltd, Indue Ltd and Waratah Finance Pty Ltd.

overdraft facility - cuscal ltd      
  Approved limit (committed)    15,000   15,000   15,000   15,000 
  Balance at end of financial year    -   -   -   - 

  Unused credit at end of financial year    15,000   15,000   15,000   15,000 

overdraft facility - indue ltd      
  Approved limit (committed)    -   350   -   350 
  Balance at end of financial year    -   -   -   - 

  Unused credit at end of financial year    -   350   -   350 

loan securitisation funding - waratah Finance pty ltd      
  Approved limit (uncommitted)    -   80,000   -   80,000 
  Balance at end of financial year    -   71,748    -   71,748 

  Unused credit at end of financial year     -    8,252    -   8,252 

loan securitisation funding - barton w warehouse trust      
  Approved limit (committed)    100,000   -   100,000   - 
  Balance at end of financial year    96,077   -   96,077   - 

  Unused credit at end of financial year    3,923   -   3,923   -  

loan securitisation funding - barton a warehouse trust      
  Approved limit (committed)    200,000   -   200,000   - 
  Balance at end of financial year    -   -   -   - 

  Unused credit at end of financial year    200,000   -   200,000   -  

standby facilities - cuscal ltd      
  Approved limit (committed)    15,000   15,000   15,000   15,000 
  Balance at end of financial year    -   -   -   - 

  Unused credit at end of financial year    15,000   15,000   15,000   15,000 

All facilities are reviewed annually and therefore contractually mature within 1 year. The securitisation funding line with Waratah Finance Pty Ltd was 
repaid in March 2012.        
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   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
26   opeRatinG leases      
non-cancellable operating lease payments      
  Less than 1 year     7,284    5,758   6,911    5,390 
  Between 1 and 5 years     15,608    10,216    15,421    9,676 
  Beyond 5 years    23,932   106   23,932   106  

     46,824    16,080    46,264    15,172  

      
non-cancellable operating lease commitments receivable      
  Less than 1 year    567   362   601   396 
  Between 1 and 5 years    1,424   662   1,486   761 
  Beyond 5 years    -   -   -   -  

    1,991   1,024   2,087   1,157  

      
operating leases - as lessee      
Occupancy - The Consolidated Entity has entered into lease arrangements for periods up to 10 years, for the occupancy of business premises. 
The total amount of rental expense recognised in the financial year, in relation to occupying these premises was $6,672,429 (2011: $6,271,717). 
This represents the minimum lease payments. There are no contingent rental clauses. 

The occupancy leases have varying option clauses to extend up to 5 years and contain market review clauses in the event that the Consolidated 
Entity exercises its option to renew. The Consolidated Entity does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the lease period. 

Motor Vehicles - The Consolidated Entity has entered into lease arrangements for periods up to 5 years, for the operation of these assets. The 
total amount of rental expense recognised in the financial year, in relation to using the assets was $260,517 (2011: $226,631). This represents 
the minimum lease payments. The Consolidated Entity does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the lease period.

operating leases - as lessor      
The Credit Union has entered into an arrangement with Eastwoods Wealth Management Pty Ltd for occupancy of floor space in its building at 
Mawson, ACT along with a sub-lease arrangement with an external party for occupancy of leased space for periods of up to 3 years. 
Rental Income recognised by the Consolidated Entity in the financial year was $533,868 (2011: $143,062). 

27   eMployee beneFits 
(a)  employee entitlements      
Provision for employee benefits - current      
  - Annual leave    3,021   2,739   2,630   2,425 
  - Long service leave - current    449   411   398   375  

    3,470   3,150   3,028   2,800  
Provision for employee benefits - non current      
  - Long service leave - non current    3,843   3,224   3,361   2,867  

Total provision for employee benefits    7,313   6,374   6,389  5,667  
      
Accrued Staff costs included in other payables (Note 18)     1,306    1,875    1,176    1,724  

Aggregate employee benefit and related on-cost liabilities     8,619    8,249   7,565   7,391  

      
    no.   No.   no.   No. 
(b) number of Full time equivalent employees at year end     474    489    435   447

notes to tHe 
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28   coMMitMents to extend cRedit      
Binding commitments to provide loan funding are agreements to lend to the member as long as there is no violation of any condition established 
in the contract. The total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The balance of undrawn credit limits are 
commitments which can be unconditionally revoked at any time without notice and are subject to review at least annually.    

 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
      
Approved but undrawn loans    113,717   103,529   113,717   103,529 
Approved but undrawn credit limits    211,293   211,707   211,293   211,707  

     325,010   315,236   325,010   315,236 

29   siGniFicant alliances      
The Credit Union has significant alliances with the following suppliers of services:      

cuscal ltd      
This entity supplies the Credit Union with rights to member cheques, Redicard and Visa card in Australia and provides services in the form of 
settlement with bankers for member cheques, electronic funds deposit, and Visa card transactions and provides the link for all member electronic 
funds transactions to the computer bureau which services the Credit Union. The Credit Union is a shareholder in Cuscal Ltd.  

data action pty ltd      
This company is the computer bureau which provides the Credit Union with a range of computing services. The Credit Union is a shareholder in 
the company.      

allianz insurance ltd      
The Credit Union is an agent of Allianz Australia Insurance Limited for the purpose of offering their specialised range of insurance products for 
Credit Union members.      

bt Financial Group      
Eastwoods Wealth Management Pty Ltd has an agreement with Asgard Capital Management Ltd to provide administration services to financial planning 
clients and with Securitor to provide dealer-to-dealer services. Asgard and Securitor are both members of the BT Financial Group.

30   auditoR's ReMuneRation
Amounts received or due and receivable by the auditors of the Consolidated Entity:
  - auditing the financial report    156   161   121   135 
  - APRA audit activities    83   42   83   42 
  - auditing the AFSL Returns    12   8   5   5 
  - other assurance services    32   76   32   76 
  - taxation services    58   86   58   86 

    341   373   299   344  

      
The auditor of Community CPS Australia Ltd is KPMG.      

The Board is satisfied that the provision of non-audit services has not compromised auditor independence. 
No audit or other services were provided by practices related to the auditor of the Consolidated Entity. 
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31   key ManaGeMent peRsonnel disclosuRes      
The following were key management personnel of the Credit Union at any time during the reporting period, and unless otherwise indicated were 
key management personnel for the entire period.      
      
non-executive directors  executives    
C M Doogan  R O Keogh (Chief Executive Officer)     
A M O'Donnell   J Lipkiewicz  (General Manager - Professional Services)    
P G Gogarty   W Matters (Chief Financial Officer)    
C A Nance   R Norgate (General Manager - Operations)    
S Nolis   R O'Brien (General Manager - Distribution)    
H L Webster  P Rutter (Executive Manager - Retail)    
D L Goodin (appointed 30/08/2011)      
B G Hanna (term ended 23/11/2011 and did not seek re-election)      
S A L Chapman (term ended 23/11/2011 and did not seek re-election)      
G J Green (resigned 30/06/2012)      
     

 consolidated cRedit union
   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $ $ $ $
key management personnel compensation      
The aggregate compensation of the key management personnel of the  
Consolidated Entity and the Credit Union is set out as follows:      
Short term employee benefits    2,613,236   2,313,393   2,577,516   2,281,051 

    2,613,236   2,313,393   2,577,516   2,281,051   

      
The key management personnel compensation detailed above is included in staff costs (Note 3) and includes $649,182 (2011: $614,221) 
relating to directors.      

other transactions with key management personnel - financial instruments 
loans to key management personnel      
Loans and overdrafts outstanding     3,037,474   2,658,806   3,037,474   2,658,806 

Loans totalling $265,000 (2011: $1,290,000) were made to key management personnel during the year.
During the year key management personnel repaid $1,926,340 (2011: $1,817,172) of the balance outstanding on their loan. 
Loans are either unsecured or secured  by registered  mortgage over the borrower’s residences. 
Interest received on the loans during the year totalled $202,722 (2011: $241,236).

deposits from key management personnel      
Deposit balances     292,947   192,225   292,947   192,225 

Financial instrument transactions between key management personnel and the Credit Union during the financial year were in the nature of normal 
personal banking, investment and deposit transactions. These transactions occurred on an arm’s length basis and on normal commercial terms 
and conditions materially no more favourable than those given to other employees or members generally. 

These terms and conditions have not been breached and no amounts have been written down or recorded as allowances as the balances are 
considered fully collectible.

other transactions with key management personnel - equity instruments
Each key management member holds one Member share in the Credit Union.     

notes to tHe 
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32   otheR Related paRty disclosuRes      
other related party transactions - ultimate parent entity      
Community CPS Australia Ltd is the parent entity in the Consolidated Entity and the ultimate parent entity in the wholly owned group.  

other related party transactions - equity interests in controlled entities      
Details of the percentage of ordinary shares held in controlled entities are disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.    

other related party transactions - transactions within the wholly-owned group       
The wholly-owned group includes:      
- the ultimate parent entity in the wholly-owned group; and      
- controlled entities, listed in Note 11.      

Amounts receivable and payable to entities in the wholly-owned group are disclosed in Notes 6 and 18 to the financial statements.
Other transactions that occurred during the financial year between entities in the wholly-owned group were: 
- net changes in amounts payable/receivable to/from Eastwoods Wealth Management Pty Ltd -$69,184 (2011: -$147,622) and Eastwoods 

Accounting & Taxation Pty Ltd -$210,705 (2011: -$317,667);      
- interest charged on receivables during the year from Eastwoods Wealth Management Pty Ltd $Nil (2011:$NIL) and Eastwoods Accounting & 

Taxation Pty Ltd $10,702 (2011: $18,054);      
-  the Credit Union provides administrative support to its controlled entities across a range of services, including accounts payable processing, 

marketing support, property maintenance, Information Technology etc. The extent of this support is not material to the Credit Union and no 
charges are levied for their provision;      

-  the Credit Union made donations totalling $660,000 (2011: $647,000) to the Community CPS Foundation Master Support Fund and the 
Community CPS Foundation Master DGR Fund;      

-  a management fee of $66,557 (2011: $86,355) was charged by Eastwoods Group Ltd to Eastwoods Wealth Management Pty Ltd and 
Eastwoods Accounting and Taxation Pty Ltd (half each) for management services provided;    

-  a management fee of $251,056 (2011:$47,021) is paid to Community CPS Services Pty Ltd for trust management services in relation to The 
Barton trust;      

-  a fee of $1,861,290 (2011: $253,122) was received by the Credit Union in relation to The Barton Series Trust for custodian services and loan 
servicing in accordance with the Trust documents for the Barton securitisation program;    

-  a fee of $56,588 was received by the Credit Union in relation to The Barton W Warehouse Trust for custodian services and loan servicing in 
accordance with the Trust documents for the Barton securitisation program.      
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33   Financial instRuMents      

(a) Financial risk management objectives      
The Credit Union and Consolidated Entity as part of its daily operations is exposed to a range of risks. The management of these risk exposures 
involves a number of activities including the identification of particular risks, quantifying the risk exposure, implementing procedures to control 
and mitigate the risks, and risk reporting.      

The Credit Union and Consolidated Entity has in place an enterprise wide risk management process. The process is managed through its Board 
Risk Committee, the Board Audit and Finance Committee, and the Management Operations Risk Committee, and is supported by a documented 
risk management plan, risk policies and strategies, internal controls and procedures, and a Business Risk and Continuity Plan.  

The risk management process involves establishing the context and the identification, analysis, evaluation, treatment, communication and 
ongoing monitoring of risks. A risk database has been established as part of the risk management process that utilises internationally recognised 
software enabling a structured and logical assessment and reporting of identified risks including their consequences and likelihood, and the 
assessment of established risk mitigation controls.      

Risks of financial instruments are reported for the Consolidated Entity only as they are not materially different to those of the Credit Union.  

The Credit Union does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. The use 
of financial derivatives is governed by the Credit Union's policies, as approved by the Board. Compliance with policies is reviewed by the risk 
management structure in place on a continuous basis, as discussed under Note 33(a) above.     

     

(b) liquidity risk management      
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Consolidated Entity will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations from its financial liabilities. The Consolidated 
Entity's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when 
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to its reputation.

The Consolidated Entity has in place policies, information systems and a structured process to measure, monitor and manage liquidity risk. The 
key measure used by the Consolidated Entity for managing liquidity risk is the ratio of high quality liquid assets to its liabilities base, as defined in 
APRA Prudential Standards. The management process incorporates specific liquidity management strategies and liquidity contingency plans that 
manage liquidity on a daily basis under normal situations and assumed adverse scenarios. The liquidity strategy requires the holding of surplus 
funds in high quality liquid assets, the availability of appropriate standby lines of funding, maintenance of reliable sources of funding (retail and 
wholesale) and daily, medium and longer term liquidity projections.      

APRA Prudential Standards place specific management and reporting requirements on credit unions in relation to liquidity risk. The Prudential 
Standards provide that liquidity strategies and liquidity holdings can be based on either a scenario analysis or on a minimum liquidity holdings 
basis. APRA has approved the adoption by the Credit Union of a minimum liquidity holdings basis whereby the Credit Union is required to 
maintain a minimum holding of 9% of its liabilities in specified high quality liquid assets at all times. The Credit Union and the Consolidated Entity 
complied with all APRA liquidity requirements throughout the year.

  consolidated
     2012 2011
     % %
      
Liquidity holdings     13.56   12.70
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33   Financial instRuMents (continued)       

(b) liquidity risk management (continued)       
An analysis of residual contractual maturities of the Consolidated Entity's financial assets and liabilities is set out below. Actual expected maturity 
periods for Loans and Advances to Members are substantially shorter than contractual maturity dates.
       
      no maturity total
Financial instruments < 1 mth 1 - 3 mths 3 mths - 1 yr 1 - 5 yrs > 5 yrs specified amount

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
i) Financial assets  -  2012       
Cash and Deposits at call  54,912   -   -   -   -    5,029     59,941  
Prepayments and other receivables  -   -   -   -   -   17,147   17,147 
Placements with other financial institutions   -   371,997   -   1,533   -   -   373,530  
Loans and advances to members  213,840   17,364   30,904   426,966   2,430,114   -   3,119,188   
Other financial assets  -   -   -   -   -   -   -  
Investment securities  -   -   -   -   -   14,255   14,255  
Total financial assets   268,752   389,361   30,904   428,499   2,430,114   36,431   3,584,061   
       
ii) Financial liabilities  -  2012       
Deposits from other financial institutions  7,594   -   -   -   -   -   7,594 
Deposits from members  1,657,169   631,072   578,476   88,161   -   -   2,954,878 
Other payables    -   -   -   -   -   21,296   21,296 
Borrowings  -   -   -   -   312,506   -   312,506 
Other financial liabilities  63   175   950   1,726   -   -   2,914  

Total financial liabilities   1,664,826   631,247   579,426   89,887   312,506   21,296   3,299,188   

Commitments to extend credit  325,010   -   -   -   -   -   325,010  
       
i) Financial assets  -  2011       
Cash and Deposits at call 48,541   -   -   -   -   14,381   62,922 
Prepayments and other receivables  -   -   -   -   -   29,557   29,557 
Placements with other financial institutions  196,353   79,382   99,500   2,033   -   -   377,268 
Loans and advances to members  229,008   8,889   41,555   398,322   2,256,528   -   2,934,302 
Other financial assets  -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Investment securities  -   -   -   -   -   14,255   14,255 

Total financial assets  473,902   88,271   141,055   400,355   2,256,528   58,193   3,418,304 

       
ii) Financial liabilities  -  2011       
Deposits from other financial institutions  2,535   2,014   2,026   -   -   -   6,575 
Deposits from members  1,526,915   479,108   705,259   52,111   -   -   2,763,393 
Other payables    -   -   -   -   -   29,732   29,732 
Borrowings  -   1,700   6,400   -   350,468   -   358,568 
Other financial liabilities  44   96   438   1,749   -   -   2,327 

Total financial liabilities  1,529,494   482,918   714,123   53,860   350,468   29,732   3,160,595 

       
Commitments to extend credit  315,236   -   -   -   -   -   315,236 
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33   Financial instRuMents (continued)        
(c) credit risk management       

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Consolidated Entity.  
The Consolidated Entity has adopted a policy of only dealing with credit worthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral or other security 
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. 

The Consolidated Entity's maximum exposures to credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of recognised financial asset is the carrying 
amount of those assets as indicated in the balance sheet. The maximum credit exposure does not take into account the value of any collateral or 
other security held, in the event other entities/parties fail to perform their obligations under the financial instruments in question. Collateral held takes 
the form of mortgage interests over real property, other registered securities and guarantees. The value of collateral held against individual exposures 
is generally only assessed at the time of borrowing or when a review of specific review of that exposure is undertaken in accordance with policy.

The Consolidated Entity minimises concentrations of credit risk in relation to loans receivable by undertaking transactions with a large number of 
members within the specified categories. The majority of members are concentrated in South Australia, Western Australia, the Australian Capital 
Territory and regional New South Wales. Credit risk in loans receivable is managed through both up-front and ongoing risk assessment processes 
applied for all members, including affordability and security requirements, approval authorities and the securing of credit insurance for higher risk 
loans. Loan provisions are calculated as disclosed under Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.  

The Group holds collateral against loans and advances to members in the form of mortgage interests over property, other registered securities 
over assets, and guarantees. Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing, and generally are 
not updated except when a loan is individually assessed as impaired. Collateral usually is not held against investment securities, and no such 
collateral was held at 30 June 2012 or 2011.      

Investments are allowed only in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least investment grade.  

 consolidated 
exposure to credit risk loans and  advances placements with other
 to members financial institutions
   2012 2011 2012 2011
Carrying amount   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Individually impaired        
-  Mortgage secured    3,470    7,472   -   -   
-  Other loans     572    477   -   -  

Gross amount     4,042    7,949   -   -   
Less: Allowance for impairment     657    782   -   -  

Carrying amount     3,385    7,167   -   -   
Collectively impaired:        
-  Mortgage secured     8,411    7,835   -   - 
-  Other loans     2,242    2,203   -   -  
-  Overdrawn and overlimit savings     6,941    6,738   -   -   

Gross amount     17,594    16,776   -   -   
Less: Allowance for impairment     1,169    1,133   -   -   

Carrying amount     16,425    15,643   -   - 
Past due but not impaired       
-  less than 30 days     67,241    48,407   -   -  
-  30 days +    -   -   -   -   

Carrying amount     67,241    48,407   -   -  
Neither past due nor impaired         
Carrying amount     3,030,311    2,861,170    373,530    377,268  

Total carrying amount     3,117,362    2,932,387    373,530    377,268 
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33   Financial instRuMents (continued)        
(d) capital management      

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain member, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the 
business. The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages 
and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Group's target is to achieve a return on equity of greater than 10%; during the year ended 30 June 
2012 the return was 10.1% percent (2011: 10.4%). There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the year.

(e) capital adequacy      

The management of the capital of a financial institution is a fundamental part of its risk management process as an essential element of capital 
is its availability to absorb future, unexpected and unidentified losses. As a mutual organisation, the Credit Union's primary source of capital is 
retained earnings. The Credit Union maintains an Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process to provide assurance that its capital holdings 
are commensurate with its risk exposures, it identifies future capital needs in advance and has plans in place to respond to unexpected capital 
deficiencies. Note 34 provides an outline of the Capital Adequacy of the Credit Union. 

      

(f) Market risk management      

Market risk is the risk of exposure to changes to financial prices affecting the value of positions held by the Credit Union as part of its normal trading 
activities. As the Credit Union does not deal in foreign exchange contracts or commodities, market risk for the Group consists solely of interest rate risk. 

Interest rate risk is managed in the following ways:

The Board has in place a market risk policy which establishes a methodology for the calculation, examination and reporting of the interest rate 
risk position on a regular basis. The policy sets risk limits above which the Credit Union is required to actively hedge its exposure through the use 
of on-balance sheet methods or through financial instruments such as interest rate swaps;    

Overall daily management of interest rate risk is vested in the Assets and Liability Committee (ALCO). The ALCO meets monthly and reviews the 
interest rate risk position and measures taken to manage that position. The ALCO is also responsible for reviewing all policies associated with 
market risk and treasury matters.

Two methods are used to measure interest rate risk, namely Market Value of Equity (MVE) and net interest income volatility with the MVE the 
preferred measure. The MVE method encompasses the price sensitivity of assets and liabilities and the value of the cash flows to maturity. The 
calculations are obtained through the use of specific modelling software using actual and projected financial information within defined interest 
rate scenarios of upward and downward shocks of 200 basis points. The net interest income approach is derived from the same modelling 
software utilising simulated income projections. A rudimentary gap analysis methodology is also employed. Refer to Note 33(g).
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33   Financial instRuMents (continued)       
(g) interest rate risk management

The Credit Union's, and the Consolidated Entity's, activities primarily expose it to the financial risks of changes in interest rates. The Credit Union 
utilises financial modelling techniques to identify the value at risk to net interest income and the market value of equity, given a number of assumed 
changes in market interest rates. The Board has in place a market risk policy which sets risk limits above which the Credit Union is required to 
actively hedge its exposure through the use of on-balance sheet methods or through financial instruments such as interest rate swaps. 

The Consolidated Entity's exposure to interest rate risks and the effective interest rates of financial assets and financial liabilities at the balance date, 
which is not materially different to that of the Credit Union, are as follows:       
 
        non  weighted
 variable  Fixed interest rate maturing in: interest  av. effective
 int. rate < 1 yr 1 - 2 yrs 2 -3 yrs 3 - 4 yrs 4 - 5 yrs > 5 yrs bearing total int. rate

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 %
i) Financial assets - 2012 

Cash and Deposits at call  54,913   -   -   -   -   -   -   5,028   59,941  3.70%

Prepayments and other  
receivables  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   17,147   17,147  n/a

Placements with other  
financial institutions  -   371,997   -   1,533   -   -   -   -   373,530  4.86%

Loans and advances  
to members  2,201,697   343,460   342,507   190,801   22,132   16,940   1,652   -   3,119,189  6.66%

Investment securities  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   14,255   14,255  n/a

Total financial assets  2,256,610   715,457   342,507   192,334   22,132   16,940   1,652   36,430   3,584,062  

          

ii) Financial liabilities  
    - 2012          

Deposits from other  
financial institutions  -   7,500   -   -   -   -   -   94   7,594  5.65%

Deposits from members  1,275,555   1,565,266   63,477   20,040   1,233   2,037   -   27,270   2,954,878  4.26%

Other payables    -   -   -   -   -   -   -   21,296   21,296  n/a

Borrowings  -   312,506   -   -   -   -   -   -   312,506  4.65%

Total financial liabilities  1,275,555   1,885,272   63,477   20,040   1,233   2,037   -   48,660   3,296,274  

          

Interest rate swaps -  
notional principal  -   64,406   (63,018)  (1,284)  (104)  -   -   -   -  4.34%
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33   Financial instRuMents (continued)       
(g) interest rate risk management (continued)
        non  weighted
 variable  Fixed interest rate maturing in: interest  av. effective
 int. rate < 1 yr 1 - 2 yrs 2 -3 yrs 3 - 4 yrs 4 - 5 yrs > 5 yrs bearing total int. rate

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 %
i) Financial assets - 2011          

Deposits at call  48,541   -   -   -   -   -   -   14,381   62,922  6.03%

Prepayments and  
other receivables  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   29,557   29,557  n/a

Placements with other  
financial institutions  -   375,235   500   1,033   500   -   -   -   377,268  5.60%

Loans and advances  
to members  2,064,321   344,963   232,252   246,488   32,688   11,668   1,921   -   2,934,301  7.45%

Investment securities  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   14,255   14,255  n/a

Total financial assets    2,112,862   720,198   232,752   247,521   33,188   11,668   1,921   58,193   3,418,303  

          

ii) Financial liabilities  -  
     2011          

Deposits from other  
financial institutions  -   6,500   -   -   -   -   -   75   6,575  6.00%

Deposits from members  1,205,947   1,477,224   30,716   19,008   957   735   -   28,806   2,763,393  4.77%

Other payables    -   -   -   -   -   -   -   29,732   29,732  n/a

Borrowings  -   358,568   -   -   -   -   -   -   358,568  5.96%

Total financial liabilities  1,205,947   1,842,292   30,716   19,008   957   735   -   58,613   3,158,268   

          

Interest rate swaps -  
notional principal  -   132,877   (65,891)  (65,545)  (1,441)  -   -   -   -  6.28%

The Consolidated Entity has disclosed the above information in relation to financial assets and liabilities based on the expected repricing dates. 
These dates may differ significantly from the contractual dates however this basis provides a more accurate measure for evaluating the interest 
rate risk to which the entity is exposed. 

The Credit Union provides mortgage secured loans to its members at interest rates that can be fixed for terms of one to five years. The member 
retains an option to break their loan contract during the fixed rate period upon payment of the prescribed fee. This fee is calculated based on the 
economic loss of the Credit Union and should off-set the loss incurred due to the breaking of the contract.
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33   Financial instRuMents (continued)       
(h) Market risk sensitivity analysis 
The management of interest rate risk against interest rate gap limits is supplemented by monitoring the sensitivity of the Consolidated Entity's 
net interest revenue and net financial assets or "market value of equity" to standard interest rate scenarios. Standard interest rate scenarios 
considered on a monthly basis include 100 and 200 basis point (bp) parallel falls and rises in all yield curves. Sensitivity outcomes are assessed 
relative to either 12 month forecast net interest revenue, in respect of net interest revenue sensitivity, or the Consolidated Entity's current capital 
base, for market value of equity sensitivity.  

     30 June 2012   30 June 2011  
 100 bp rise 100 bp fall 200 bp rise 200 bp fall 100 bp rise 100 bp fall 200 bp rise 200 bp fall

Market Value of Equity Sensitivity
Average for the period -0.64% 0.66% -0.99% 1.08% -0.60% 0.64% -0.81% 0.98%
Maximum for the period -1.22% 1.25% -2.16% 2.28% -1.44% 1.49% -2.49% 2.70%
Minimum for the period -0.03% 0.04% 0.27% -0.22% 0.15% -0.13% 0.70% -0.57% 
 
Net Interest Revenue Sensitivity
Average for the period 1.78% -1.76% 3.97% -3.89% 1.93% -1.90% 4.35% -4.24%
Maximum for the period 2.11% -2.08% 4.64% -4.54% 2.32% -2.29% 5.16% -5.03%
Minimum for the period 1.35% -1.33% 3.06% -3.00% 1.38% -1.36% 3.20% -3.12% 

(i) interest rate swap contracts
The Consolidated Entity may use various types of interest rate contracts in managing interest rate exposure, including interest rate swap contracts.

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Consolidated Entity agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts 
calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Consolidated Entity to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates.

The Consolidated Entity enters into interest rate swap agreements for the sole purpose of managing interest rate exposures in the balance sheet 
and not for speculative purposes. 

The following table details the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts outstanding as at reporting date. 

outstanding fixed for floating contracts average interest rate Fair value notional principal amount

   2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

   % % $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Less than 1 year   3.87% 6.85%  (1,188)  (578)  110,873   48,435 
1 to 2 years   5.06% 6.97%  (1,662)  (1,669)  63,018   65,891 
2 to 5 years   8.88% 5.19%  (63)  (80)  1,388   66,985  
5 years and more      -   -   -   -  

       (2,913)  (2,327)  175,279   181,311  

 consolidated cRedit union

   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Interest rate swap contracts exchanging fixed rate interest for floating rate 
interest are designated and assessed as effective fair value hedges.
Fair value movements on financial instruments recognised in the Income 
Statement comprised the following: 
-  Net (losses)/gains on effective fair value hedging instruments    763   (1,817)  763   (1,817)
-  Net gains/(losses) on fair value hedged items    (913)  1,951   (913)  1,951 
-  Amortisation of quarantined fair value amounts on de-designated hedged items   (542)  (1,589)  (542)  (1,589) 
-  Net gains/(losses) on derivatives not hedge accounted    326   2,125   326   2,125  

Total fair value movements recognised in the Income Statement    (366)  670   (366)  670   

33   Financial instRuMents (continued)   

(j) Financial assets and liabilities by classification 
The table below sets out the Consolidated Entity's classification of each class of financial assets and liabilities, and their fair values (excluding 
accrued interest).           

      other at total 
  available  held-to- loans and amortised carrying 
 Note for sale at fair value maturity Receivables cost amount Fair value

  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

30 June 2012         
Cash and cash equivalents 5  -   -   -   59,941   -   59,941   59,941 
Prepayments and other receivables 6  -   -   -   17,147   -   17,147   17,147 
Placements with other financial institutions 7  -   -   373,530   -   -   373,530   373,556 
Loans and advances to members 8,9  -   -   -   3,117,362   -   3,117,362   3,170,611 
Investment Securities 11  14,255   -   -   -   -   14,255   14,255  

Deposits from other financial institutions 16  -   -   -   -   7,594   7,594   7,488 
Deposit from members 17  -   -   -   -   2,954,878   2,954,878   2,952,317 
Other payables 18  -   -   -   -    21,296   21,296   21,296  
Borrowings 19  -   -   -   -   312,506   312,506   312,506  
Other financial liabilities 20  -   2,914   -   -   -   2,914   2,914  

30 June 2011        
Cash and cash equivalents 5  -   -   -   62,922   -   62,922   62,922 
Prepayments and other receivables 6  -   -   -   29,557   -   29,557   29,557 
Placements with other financial institutions 7  -   -   377,268   -   -   377,268   376,398 
Loans and advances to members 8,9  -   -   -   2,932,387   -   2,932,387   2,964,667 
Investment Securities 11  14,255   -   -   -   -   14,255   14,255 

Deposits from other financial institutions 16  -   -   -   -   6,575   6,575   6,481 
Deposit from members 17  -   -   -   -   2,763,393   2,763,393   2,755,292 
Other payables 18  -   -   -   -   29,732   29,732   29,732 
Borrowings 19  -   -   -   -   358,568   358,568   358,568 
Other financial liabilities 20  -   2,327   -   -   -   2,327   2,327 
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33   Financial instRuMents (continued)

(k) Fair value of financial instruments
The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the fair values of financial assets and liabilities based on the assumptions in the 
Statement of significant accounting policies (Note 1).

cash and cash equivalents

As the assets are at call the carrying amount equates to fair value.

other receivables 

The carrying amount of trade debtors and other receivables is estimated to approximate fair value.

placements with other financial institutions

The fair values of other deposits are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based on current market rates for investments having 
substantially the same terms and conditions. Bank accepted bills of exchange and bank negotiable certificates of deposit held are not intended to 
be traded but held until maturity. The fair value of these assets is based on the quoted market price at balance date.

loans and advances to members      
The fair values of loans receivable are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based on current incremental lending rates for similar types 
of lending arrangements. 

other financial assets
The fair value of Interest rate swaps are determined as the net present value of the future cash flows. 

investment securities       
With exception of shares held in Cuscal Ltd, the fair value and carrying value of unlisted shares is their original cost because their fair value cannot 
be measured reliably. A parcel of Cuscal shares were purchased during the year ended 30 June 2008 for $1.25 per share. In acquiring the 
parcel of Cuscal shares, a range of high level values were determined using various valuation methodologies with a market methodology average 
supporting the $1.25 price. As the shares purchased are identical in terms of rights and obligations to Cuscal shares already held, this determined 
the fair value for the original shares held and hence a fair value upward adjustment was raised in equity in that year. 

deposits from other financial institutions      
The fair values of deposits from other financial institutions are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based on current market rates for 
deposits having substantially the same terms and conditions.      

deposits from members      

The carrying amount approximates fair value for savings account balances as they are at call.     

The fair value of members' term deposits are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based on current market rates for term deposits 
having substantially the same terms and conditions.      

other payables      

This includes interest payable and accrued expenses payable for which the carrying amount is considered to be a reasonable estimate of net fair value.

33   Financial instRuMents (continued)

(k) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
borrowings      

The fair values of borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based on current market rates for borrowings having substantially 
the same terms and conditions. 

The aggregate net fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at the balance date, are as follows:

 total carrying amount   
 as per balance sheets aggregate net fair value 

   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i) Financial assets      
Cash and liquid assets    59,941   62,922   59,941   62,922 
Prepayments and other receivables    17,147   29,557   17,147   29,557 
Placements with other financial institutions    373,530   377,268   373,556   376,398 
Loans and advances to members    3,117,362    2,932,387   3,170,611   2,964,667 
Investment securities    14,255   14,255   14,255   14,255  

Total financial assets     3,582,235    3,416,389   3,635,510   3,447,799  

      
ii) Financial liabilities      
Deposits from other financial institutions    7,594   6,575   7,488   6,481 
Deposits from members    2,954,878   2,763,393   2,952,317   2,755,292 
Other payables     21,296    29,732    21,296    29,732 
Borrowings    312,506   358,568   312,506   358,568  
Other financial liabilities (interest rate swaps)    2,914   2,327   2,914   2,327  

Total financial liabilities     3,299,188    3,160,595   3,296,521   3,152,400  
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33   Financial instRuMents (continued)      

(l) Fair value hierarchy      
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:
 -  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (the Consolidated Entity has no such financial instruments)
 -  Level 2: inputs other than unquoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
 -  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.      

 level 2 level 3 

   2012 2011 2012 2011
   $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i) Financial assets      
Available-for-sale investment securities    -   -   14,255   14,255

    -   -   14,255   14,255 

      
ii) Financial liabilities      
Other financial liabilities (interest rate swaps)     2,914    2,327   -   - 

     2,914    2,327   -   - 

      

  consolidated
     2012 2011
     $'000 $'000 
The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to 
the ending balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy:
    Balance at beginning of the financial year     14,255   14,009 
    Acquisitions through business combinations      -   246 

balance at end of financial year       14,255    14,255 

      
Although the Consolidated Entity considers that its estimates of fair value are appropriate, the use of different methodologies or assumptions could 
lead to different measurements of fair value at Level 3. However, changing one or more of the inputs to reasonably possible alternative assumptions 
would not change the fair value of Level 3 financial instruments significantly relative to total assets or equity.

      

  consolidated
     2012 2011
     % % 
34 capital adequacy

APRA calculation (minimum 8%)     16.09  16.14  

APRA Prudential Standards require credit unions to maintain at all times a minimum ratio of capital to risk-weighted assets of 8%.

As part of its risk management process, the Credit Union has developed a methodology with financial modelling to assist in determining the optimum 
level of capital that is consistent with assessed risk exposure and business activity. The optimum capital is managed within a range well above the 
8% minimum required by APRA and incorporates an assessment of the combined risk exposure for operations, market and credit risk. The Credit 
Union and the Consolidated Entity complied with all APRA capital adequacy requirements throughout the year.

35 continGent liabilities      
credit union Financial support system (cuFss):      

The Credit Union is a party to the Credit Union Financial Support System (CUFSS). CUFSS is a voluntary scheme that all Credit Unions who are 
affiliated with Cuscal Ltd have agreed to participate in. CUFSS is a company limited by guarantee, each Credit Union's guarantee being $100.  

As a member of CUFSS, the Credit Union:      

- May be required to advance funds of up to 3% (excluding permanent loans) of total assets to another credit union requiring financial support.  

- May be required to advance permanent loans of up to 0.2% of total assets per financial year to another credit union requiring financial support. 

- Agrees, in conjunction with other members, to fund the operating costs of CUFSS.   

No such direction has, at balance date, been given to the Credit Union.      

letter of financial support - eastwoods wealth Management pty ltd:      
The Credit Union has provided a letter of limited financial support to its controlled entity, Eastwoods Wealth Management Pty Ltd, in connection 
with that entity’s Financial Services Licensing obligations.       

The fair value of this letter of financial support is $Nil as the Credit Union does not envisage Eastwoods Wealth Management Pty Ltd needing to 
call on it, due to the financial position and projections for the company.  

letter of financial support - community cps services pty ltd:      
The Credit Union has provided a letter of limited financial support to its controlled entity, Community CPS Services Pty Ltd, in connection with 
that entity’s Financial Services Licensing obligations.       

The fair value of this letter of financial support is $Nil as the Credit Union does not envisage Community CPS Services Pty Ltd needing to call on 
it, due to the financial position and projections for the company.      

Financial guarantees provided on behalf of members:      
At balance date, the Credit Union had financial guarantees in place that it had provided on behalf of members, totalling $1,232,323  
(2011: $899,705).      

The Credit Union has not received any directions in relation to these guarantees to balance date.

The fair value of these guarantees is $Nil as they are secured by either registered mortgage or term deposit and no loss is anticipated even in the 
event of directions.      

36  subsequent events       

There have been no events subsequent to balance date which would have a material effect on the Consolidated Entity's financial statements as  
at 30 June 2012.      
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sustAinAbilitY  
snApsHot

‘we made great progress on our 
sustainability journey over the year 
and, with the help of our members and 
employees, we continue to make a 
positive impact on the communities in 
which we work and live.’ 

RobeRt keoGh 
Chief Executive Officer

The Sustainability Snapshot has been 
prepared in line with the guidelines and major 
areas of disclosure recommended by the 
Global Reporting Initiative that are relevant to 
the operations of Community CPS Australia 
Limited including: 

•	 Community	Involvement
•	 Member	Engagement
•	 Corporate	Governance
•	 Environmental	Performance
•	 Economic	Performance
•	 Employee	Engagement

We believe that by striving to excel in each of 
these areas, we will create long-term value 
for our members, employees and the general 
community to help build a sustainable future.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
Community is not just in our name – it’s 
one of our core values, and integral to our 
purpose. Helping to build capacity in the 
Community is one of the key areas that sets 
us apart from other financial institutions and 
makes us one of the strongest credit unions 
in Australia. During the 2011/12 financial 
year, we invested more than $1.8m back 
into the community by creating engaging 
partnerships in various geographical regions 
with a large number of grass roots community 
organisations and events including:

adelaide and ReGion

•	 AM	Institute	Charity	event
•	 Camp	Quality
•	 Cancer	Council	SA
•	 Christmas	Party	for	Special	Children
•	 Credit	Union	Foundation	Australia
•	 Guide	Dogs	SA.NT
•	 Hawthorn	Bowling	Club
•	 Movember	Foundation
•	 Operation	Flinders	
•	 Polish	Community
•	 Port	Augusta	Cadets
•	 Royal	District	Nursing	Service	of	SA
•	 SA	Ambulance	Service
•	 SCOSA
•	 Scouts’	Gang	Show
•	 St	John	Youth	Council
•	 Victim	Support	Services
•	 Volunteering	SA&NT
•	 Windmill	Theatre

canbeRRa and ReGion
•	 Australian	Rugby	Choir
•	 Barnardos	
•	 Bosom	Buddies
•	 Canberra	Times	Fun	Run
•	 CAPS	-	Workplace	Employ	Services
•	 Centurions	Gridiron	Club
•	 Cerebral	Palsy	
•	 Drug	Arm	ACT
•	 Eastlake	Cricket	Club
•	 Kids	Under	Cover	Mentor	Program
•	 Lifeline	
•	 Lions	Club	
•	 Melba	Tennis	Club
•	 Movember
•	 Rotary	
•	 RSPCA
•	 Torrens	Preschool
•	 Volunteer	ACT
•	 Young	Canberra	Citizen	of	the	Year	Award

peRth and ReGion
•	 Asbestos	Disease	Society
•	 Asthma	Foundation
•	 Blue	Nights	Australia	
•	 Butterfly	Foundation
•	 Cancer	Council	
•	 Charity	Link
•	 City	to	Surf
•	 Cloverdale	Canine	Companion
•	 Constable	Care	
•	 Future	Living	Trust
•	 Guide	Dogs	for	the	Blind
•	 HandiCamp
•	 Jack&Jill	Child	Care	Centre
•	 Juvenile	Diabetes	Research	Foundation
•	 Kalgoorlie	PCYC
•	 Loud	Shirt	Day
•	 Mission	Australia	CLIP
•	 North	Beach	Bowling	Club
•	 Paraburdoo	Primary	School
•	 Paraburdoo	Riders	Association
•	 Paraburdoo	Swimming	Club
•	 Peel	Riding	for	Disabled
•	 Pilbara	and	Kimberley	Care
•	 Relay	for	Life
•	 Riverton	Primary	School
•	 Royal	Flying	Doctor
•	 Silverchain	
•	 South	Lake	Child	Care	Centre
•	 Thornlie	Christian	College
•	 Tom	Price	Nameless	Festival
•	 Volunteering	WA
•	 WACOSS
•	 West	Coast	Waves	Women’s	 

Basketball Team

RobeRt keoGh 
chieF executive oFFiceR
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newcastle and ReGion
•	 Camp	Quality	
• Cessnock District Retired Bowlers
• Cessnock Minor Rugby League
• Friends of Hunter Orthopaedic School 
• Glendale Technology High School
• Gunnedah Scholarship Fund
• Hunter Breast Care 
• Hunter Business Chamber
• Hunter Region Business Enterprise Centre
• Hunter Valley Research Foundation
• Hunter Volunteer Centre
• Kaleidoscope 
• Kurri Golf Club
• Kurri Legacy Golf Day
• Metford Public School
• National Mines Golf Championships
• Newcastle Hunter Rugby League
• Newcastle Youth Accommodation Services
• NSW Centre for Volunteering
• Relay For Life
• Riding for the Disabled NSW
• ROADWhyz
• Singleton Heights Primary School 
• St Dominic’s Charity Golf Day

• Variety Bash 
• Variety Companion Charity Golf Day
• Variety Special Children’s Xmas Party
• Vision for Life
• Volunteer of the Year Awards 
• West Wallsend High School

waGGa and ReGion
• Central Riverina Women’s Bowling Assoc.
• Coolamon Central School
• Coolamon Football & Netball Club
• Coolamon Kindra Park Trustees
• Coolamon New Year’s Eve Festival
• Coolamon St Michaels Primary School
• Coolamon Swimming Club 
• Coolamon Up-2-Date Art Exhibition
• Country Hope
• Draw For Autism
• Ganmain Bowling Club 
• Ganmain Football & Netball Club
• Ganmain Golf Club
• Ganmain Public School
• Ganmain Show 
• Ganmain Women’s Bowls Tournament
• Immune Deficiencies Foundation 
• Kyeamba Valley Landcare Group

• Marrar Football & Netball Club
• Matong Public School
• MG Car Club 
• Northcott Disability Services
• Riverina Australian Football Umpires 

Association 
• Riverina Australian Football Club  

Women’s Bowling Club
• Riverina Environmental Education Centre
• Rotary Club 
• RSPCA Million Paws Walk
• St Brendan’s School Ganmain
• The Bidgee School
• Wagga & District Bowling Association
• Wagga Aero Club
• Wagga Animal Rescue
• Wagga Annual Spring Orchid Show
• Wagga Art Prize
• Wagga Bridge Club
• Wagga Jazz & Blues Festival
• Wagga Takes Two
• Wagga Wagga Tennis Association Seniors 
• Xceler8 Junior Sports Scholarship 

Program 

GLObaL COMMUNITY
Community CPS Australia Limited also 
provides support to the global community 
through membership of the Credit Union 
Foundation Australia (CUFA). CUFA operates 
with the goal of helping people in developing 
countries to lift them out of poverty. Instead 
of giving hand-outs, CUFA works to provide 
the skills, knowledge and resources 
required for marginalised people to break 
out of poverty whilst offering ongoing 
support. CUFA’s work involves developing 
and supporting financial cooperatives in 
communities that previously had little or no 
access to a financial institution. Community 
CPS Australia Limited is a major contributor 
to CUFA and supported a number of 
overseas projects during the 2011/12 
financial year.

coMMunity volunteeRs 
Our support to the community is not always 
in the form of financial assistance. To 
highlight this, we introduced Community 
Volunteers during the year. Community 
Volunteers is a volunteering program in 
partnership with Volunteering SA&NT, 
Volunteer ACT, Volunteering WA and the 
Hunter Volunteer Centre, that matches 
suitable applicants to volunteer opportunities 
with a wide range of community minded 
organisations and registered charities. 

Research from a member survey conducted 
in 2011 concluded that a large number of 
our members are willing and interested in 
volunteering but most do not know where 
to find opportunities that suit their particular 
skills and experience. Feedback from 
Volunteering SA&NT supported this view 
and, with their knowledge and expertise 
in this field, we set about to establish a 
platform to showcase various and interesting 
volunteer opportunities to over 184,000 
members. 

The program was launched on National 
Volunteer Day in December 2011 and  
has been embraced by our members  
and employees.

coMMunity advisoRy boaRds
During the year, Community CPS Australia 
Limited introduced the concept of Community 
Advisory Boards (CAB) in order to engage 
and collaborate with local community leaders 
to develop grass roots community projects. 
Two Community Advisory Boards were 
established during the 2011/12 financial 
year. The first CAB off the rank was the West 
Lakes Community Advisory Board in South 
Australia which was quickly followed by the 
Wagga Community Advisory Board in NSW. 
The Boards are made up of local business 
and community identities who volunteer 
their time to provide valuable feedback to 
the credit union on areas that are in need of 
corporate assistance.

An example of a successful Community 
Advisory Board initiative is the Winter 
Wellness Program that was established 
in the western suburbs of Adelaide. The 
Winter Wellness Program was designed for 
members aged 65 years and over and was 
conducted in partnership with community 
partner Royal District Nursing Service of SA 
(RDNS). Each session provided attendees 
with tips on how to stay fit and healthy during 
winter, information from experts on how to 
stay safe at home, advice on local council 
services available, free flu vaccine shot 
(optional), gift bag and morning/afternoon 
tea. The program objective of working 
together to offer the wider community advice 
and information on how to survive the cold 
winter period was achieved.

constable caRe – 
westeRn austRalia

We continued our long standing partnership 
with Constable Care’s Child Safety 
Foundation by supporting their ‘Lost Child 
Program’.  The Lost Child Program aims to 
prevent and minimise lost child incidents 
at major events, while ensuring that best 
practices are followed in any instance of a 
child becoming separated from their parent 
or carer at an event.  

The program also educates parents and 
the community about safety strategies for 
safeguarding children. 

Our employees support the Lost Child 
Program by volunteering at Lost Child 
Points at events, helping to create a safer 
environment.

community cps Foundation
The Community CPS Foundation was 
established in 2007 and, since its inception, 
has provided more than $1.17m in grants to 
various community organisations. An example 
of the value that is created by the Community 
CPS Foundation is demonstrated by the grant 
provided to Silver Chain RDNS (SA) to fund a 
co-branded vehicle to allow health care staff to 
deliver services to clients ‘in-home’.

‘This vehicle is a symbol of the future of 
healthcare. Not only does it reflect the 
‘hospital-in-the-home’ model of care, but 
also the value of community partnerships.’
Chris McGowan 
Chief Executive Officer
Group Silver Chain RDNS (SA)
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countRy hope –  
new south wales
In 2011, Country Hope became Wagga’s 
first Foundation Grant recipient. Country 
Hope is the Wagga Wagga region’s 
largest community-based family support 
organisation, caring for children diagnosed 
with cancer and other life threatening 
illnesses, by providing financial, emotional 
and practical support to the families of 
these seriously ill children. Country Hope 
was established in Wagga Wagga in 2003 
when several families with seriously ill 
children recognised the need to form a local 
organisation committed to raising funds and, 
most importantly, keeping the funds within 
the local community. Country Hope receives 
no State or National funding and therefore 
relies entirely upon community support and 
continual local fundraising to provide most 
of their funds. Country Hope established a 
family support centre in Wagga which they 
are extending by adding a family room to 
cater for the increasing number of families 
affected by childhood cancer and other life 
threatening illnesses. 

cRedit union chRistMas 
paGeant – south austRalia
Once again, Community CPS Australia 
Limited was a major supporter and 
contributor to the Credit Union Christmas 
Pageant, with 92 employees volunteering for 
this huge event to bring Christmas joy to over 
320,000 children and adults who line the 
streets of Adelaide to watch the parade. This 
year’s	Pageant	Queen	was	Amy	Fenna	from	
Community CPS, who fulfilled her duties 
admirably, including a visit to young patients 
at the local Women’s and Children’s Hospital 
who were unable to attend the pageant.

vision FoR liFe –  
new south wales
In 2011, we set the target to raise funds for a 
specialised telemedicine system at Maitland 
Hospital, a major health provider to the 
Hunter Region. The $25,000 system is part 
of the Vision for Life program implemented 
by Variety the Children’s Charity NSW to 
provide a high definition video telemedicine 
system between a communications hub and 
regional and remote hospitals. Specialists can 
remotely connect to not only see the child, 
but also control the camera and technology 
to ensure local doctors and nurses are 
not distracted from the job at hand by the 
technology. Through our staff fundraising, 
generous member donations and a series 
of charity events, this fundraising target 
was exceeded with a very pleasing total of 
$33,000 being raised. Variety expects the 
system to be up and running in Maitland 
Hospital by early 2013. 

key indicators 2010/11 2011/12

Distribution from 
Community CPS 
Australia Limited 
Net Profit Before 
Tax $678,300 $707,500

Sponsorships $389,688 $496,334

Donations $39,502 $19,520

Money raised 
through 
Fundraising $408,541 $251,341

Community 
Programs and 
Resources $389,598 $369,617

Total Community 
Contribution $1,905,629 $1,844,312

Foundation 
Grants Paid 
from Community 
Contributions $219,200 $245,500

2011/12 National Foundation Grants
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MEMbER ENGaGEMENT
One of the major points of difference that 
sets us apart from other financial institutions 
is that we are a mutual organisation owned 
by our members. Every member is a 
shareholder, with an equal voice in major 
decisions on how the credit union should 
operate. This includes, nominating and 
electing directors to the Board of the credit 
union and also attending general meetings. 
The level of member engagement is a key 
performance indicator for the credit union 
and is measured each year in a member 
survey where a satisfaction ratio of greater 
than 90% is sought. We are delighted to 
report that the member satisfaction ratio for 
the 2011/12 financial year came in at 92%, 
indicating that Community CPS Australia 
Limited’s members are very happy with the 
service and products that we offer. However, 
we do not intend to rest on our laurels, and 
we will continually look for ways to remain 
relevant to members and constantly provide a 
high level of service.

coMMunication
We are committed to keeping our members 
informed in the most effective, relative and 
efficient format possible. This includes 
communicating to our members in traditional 
forms such as:
• Community Connection Newsletter
• General Meetings
• Annual Report
• Press Releases
• Website & Social Media
• Statements and Statement Inserts

During the year, in order to embrace the 
ever-increasing social media community, we 
established a Facebook presence and Twitter 
account under the ‘We’re Listening’ banner. 
Early indications, based on encouraging 
feedback from members, suggest that this 
method of communication will become 
an integral part of our overall member 
engagement strategy going forward. 

MeMbeR advocate
We have a designated Member Advocate 
who is responsible for managing complaints 
and feedback. The process for dealing with 
complaints is outlined in the ‘Resolving Your 
Concerns’ brochure which is available online 
at any branch or by calling the Member 
Contact Centre. 

If members are not satisfied with our 
response, they may refer the matter to the 
Financial Ombudsman Service (FOS), who 
is an external dispute resolution provider 
approved by the Australian Securities and 
Investments Commission (ASIC).

pRoducts
As a credit union, we are committed to 
offering quality financial products at a 
fair value to our members. Our financial 
products were reviewed by independent 
financial services industry researcher, 
CANSTAR, as part of the Money magazine’s 
annual Consumer Finance awards and their 
assessment resulted in Community CPS 
Australia Limited being named ‘Credit Union 
of the Year 2012.’

We constantly review the financial products 
that we offer to ensure that they continue to 
meet the needs of our members. Innovative 
new financial products are introduced 
after careful market research and member 
feedback, in order to fill any gaps in our 
financial product range. An example of such 
a product is the Community Reward Account 
that we launched earlier this year.

The Community Reward Account is a 
competitive savings account offering flexible 
access methods that delivers benefits to 
our members while also supporting local 
communities. The higher the number 
of members who link their Community 
Reward Account to a registered charitable 
organisation, the more funds can be raised 
for that organisation. Members who open 
a Community Reward Account select the 
charity, community group or not-for-profit 
organisation they wish to support from 
an existing list of registered recipient 
organisations. If our members’ favourite cause 
is not on the list, they can encourage their 
chosen organisation to contact Community 
CPS Australia Limited about registering.
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In regards to lending, we take a responsible 
approach by assessing all loan and overdraft 
facility applications based on the potential 
risk of default to the credit union whilst also 
ensuring that the risk of any potential financial 
hardship to the applicant is minimised.  
Our employees understand the financial 
pressures that people often face and will work 
to find a constructive solution for members 
who find themselves in financial difficulty. 

We are also aware of the financial pressures 
facing young borrowers, especially first 
homebuyers who are struggling to save the 
deposit required for a home loan. As a result, 
we designed the Parent Equity Home Loan to 
allow parents, parents-in-law or step-parents 
to help their children purchase their own 
home by using the equity in their property.

This financial year saw a 41% increase in 
Parent Equity Home Loans written, ensuring 
more young people are able to enter the first 
home buyers’ market with ease. 

seRvice
At Community CPS Australia Limited, we 
foster a strong service culture that all our 
employees strongly subscribe to. This is 
reflected in the relatively low number of service 
related complaints that we receive, particularly 
in light of the high membership growth that we 
have experienced over recent years. 

In the spirit of continual improvement, we 
continue to ensure that our financial services 
remain relevant to members and keep pace 
with new technologies. To this end, we have 
recently developed an app (application) that 
can be used on an iPhone, iPad and Android 
to allow members to enjoy the easiest and 
most convenient way of banking wherever 
they are. In particular the app allows 
members to:
• Access account balances;
• View transaction history;
• Transfer funds;
• Pay bills via Bpay;

• Locate and get directions to branches  
and ATMs;

• Research products;
• Contact us; and
• Connect with our ‘We Are Listening’  

social network.

We are currently working on making 
significant improvements within our apps 
banking platform to bring you even more 
features and functionality. 

key indicators 2010/11 2011/12

Total Number of 
Members 185,305 184,414

Member 
Satisfaction Ratio 92.60% 92.40%

Negative Member 
Feedback* 4,371 2,510

Positive Member 
Feedback 324 363

Note*: The numbers recorded against ‘Negative Member 
Feedback’ are not necessarily all complaints. We 
encourage member feedback, good or bad, to be able to 
identify processing issues or service issues and enhance 
the processes and improve our service levels. This could 
not be achieved without a positive pro-active approach to 
recording the feedback.

CORPORaTE GOVERNaNCE
As a responsible and sustainable 
organisation, Community CPS Australia 
Limited is committed to the highest level 
of corporate governance and sets a high 
standard of ethical conduct that is reflected 
in everything we do. More detailed disclosure 
on how we meet all our ethical and ethical 
requirements is included in the Corporate 
Governance section of the Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTaL 
PERFORMaNCE
Community CPS Australia Limited continues 
to be committed to minimising our impact on 
the environment from our business activities 
and encouraging behaviour that strives for 
a more sustainable future. Being the only 
Australian credit union that is currently a 
signatory to the United Nations Environment 
Program – Financial Initiative, we are 
demonstrating our commitment to becoming 
a sustainable organisation that recognises its 
moral obligations to the community and the 
environment.

caRbon FootpRint
During the 2011/12 financial year, we 
continued to measure the carbon footprint of 
our branch network, taking into account the 
greenhouse gas emissions from the use of 
electricity, gas, water, and the volume of paper, 
cardboard and general waste sent to landfill. 

We are pleased to report that this year, our 
average emissions per square metre over 
our branch network was 12% lower than the 
comparative data recorded in the 2010/11 
financial year. We utilised an internationally 
recognised carbon management system 
(Enerlytics) that complies with greenhouse 
gas protocols, to undertake this body of work.

This significant reduction was mainly due to 
an energy efficiency awareness campaign 
conducted throughout the branch network 
using advice and recommendations from 
Energy Assessment Reports prepared by 
local members of the Association of Building 
Sustainability Assessors (ABSA) in 2011.

papeR Reduction
As a financial institution, we are a high 
user of paper and paper related products, 
however we continue to look for ways to 
reduce our paper usage. Most internal 
meetings (including Board Meetings) are 
now conducted as paperless meetings with 
electronic devices taking the place of detailed 
paper-based reports.

Our members have also embraced our 
commitment to reducing paper use by 
signing up for e-statements rather than 
printed statements. The greenhouse gasses 
saved from moving to e-statements are 
8,423 of CO2e (carbon dioxide equivalent), 
or 42 full grown Australian Eucalyptus trees* 
over one year.

*Source: Energy Analytics Carbon

enviRo pRoducts
We offer Enviro Personal Loans to make it 
easier for our members to become more 
sustainable by purchasing environmentally 
responsible products such as solar power or 
hot water, rain water tanks and other water 
saving devices, 4 star+ rated appliances, 
home insulation, double glazing and even 
blinds and awnings. Members are rewarded 
for their environmental consciousness with 
a reduced rate of interest and flexible terms. 
During the year, Enviro Personal Loans totalling 
$1,167,776 were approved for our members 

who have saved money whilst reducing their 
environmental impact.

Green Loan Car loans are also available to 
members who wish to purchase a new or 
used motor vehicle that has a greenhouse 
rating of 7 or more (as determined by the 
Government Green Vehicle Guide), is a hybrid 
or runs on LPG. Once again, green-minded 
members are rewarded with a lower interest 
rate and flexible terms. 

aRboR day
This year, our members and staff celebrated 
Greening Australia’s Arbor Day by getting 
involved along the River Torrens Linear 
Trail at a spot known as Breakout Creek in 
Lockleys, South Australia. Approximately 
130 volunteers got their hands dirty with a 
total of 4,000 seedlings planted by everyone 
involved.

parent equity home loan
More young Australians are becoming first 
time home owners as they take advantage of 
products like the Parent Equity Home Loan. 

Dugan McKay, with the support of his 
parents Sharron and Graham McKay, 
recently purchased his first home in 
Western Australia.
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staFF sustainability 
awaReness 
A comprehensive sustainability awareness 
program was delivered to our employees 
during the year in order to complement 
the organisation’s overall sustainability 
objectives. This included the development of 
a mandatory self-paced e-learning module 
on sustainability basics for all new and 
existing staff. A more detailed sustainability 
training program was conducted with a 
number of Managers/Supervisors and 11 
staff members successfully completed a 
Diploma of Sustainability at TAFE SA during 
the 2011/12 financial year.

enviRonMental policy
Community CPS Australia Limited is striving 
for formal environmental certification and has 
developed a suite of policies and procedures 
that comply with ISO 14001:2004, the 
recognised international standard for 
Environmental Management Systems. The 
policies and procedures will be integrated 
throughout the organisation and will 
culminate in a Sustainability Review of major 
suppliers in order to encourage our supply 
chain to also take steps to minimise their 
impact on the environment. 

key indicatoRs 
Item 2010/11 2011/12

Total Carbon 
Footprint (t CO2e) 950.70 853.14

Carbon Footprint  
(t CO2e per SQM) * 0.158 0.139

Paper Reduction 
(CO2e saved) 7,432 kg 8,422kg

Green Loans 
Disbursed  
(100 loans total) $970,237 $1,167,776

* In last year’s report, our carbon footprint (CO2e) per sqm 
was stated as 7.23 kg. The calculation used to achieve 
this figure is in fact incorrect. We have now rectified this 
issue and recalculated the carbon footprint per sqm, with 
both the current and previous financial year’s per sqm 
figure being included for comparison

Protecting our environment remains a key 
focus and we will continually strive to become 
even more environmentally sustainable by 
exploring further initiatives that will allow 
us to make ongoing emission and cost 
reductions to our organisation.

GReeninG coMMunity 
oRGanisations
Community CPS Australia Limited, in 
association with not-for-profit Accounting 
Specialists (NFPAS), supported and 
sponsored 5 Adelaide-based community 
organisations to become more energy 
efficient and environmentally responsible. 
Sue Raw from NFPAS took the 5 
organisations through the 6P Green Program 
to show them how to measure their carbon 
footprint, reduce their energy use, develop 
an environmental policy and prepare a 
Sustainability Action Plan. The community 
organisations involved were:

•	 Community	Accommodation	&	Respite	
Agency;

•	 Life	Without	Barriers	(SA);
•	 Relationships	Australia	(SA);
•	 Northern	Domestic	Violence	Services;	and
•	 YWCA.

it is ouR mission to CReAte tHe best possible WoRKing 
enviRonment foR ouR emploYees - We stRonglY believe 
in tHe impoRtAnCe of WoRK/life bAlAnCe.
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level one
key Result 
aRea

coMMunity MeMbeRs enviRonMent econoMic eMployees GoveRnance

MeasuRe % of NPAT Satisfaction % Carbon Footprint Profitability Turnover Compliance 

taRGet > 5% of NPAT 90% to 95% Limit increase  
to less than 5%

10% to 11% 
return on equity

<17% No major 
breaches

2010/11 7.02% 92.60% 158 kgs co2e  
per sqm

10.86% 15.88% No major 
breaches

2011/12 6.54% 92.40% 139 kgs co2e 
per sqm (12.02% 
reduction)

10.12% 13.60% 1 major breach 
resolved

level two
key Result 
aRea

coMMunity MeMbeRs enviRonMent econoMic eMployees GoveRnance

MeasuRe Grants Total 
value

Advocacy 
Card

Paper Reduction- 
Co2e saved

Green Loans 
Disbursed

Training hours 
per FTE

Audit

taRGet > $200,000 > $20,000 > 5,000 kg $1,000,000 30.00 hours No major issues

2010/11 $219,200 $21,820 7,432 kg $970,237 27.41 hours No major issues

2011/12 $245,500 $16,320 8,432 kg $1,167,776 38.00 hours No major issues

waGGa Floods 
In February, the Wagga Region was 
devastated by Mother Nature. 
The Community CPS Foundation assisted 
with an appeal to help those most affected 
in the community.

waGGa kids in awe 
Children in awe of the FMX and BMX 
performers at the ‘Metal Mullisha’ show, 
held to raise funds for the Wagga Mayor’s 
Flood Appeal.

younG cRedit union leadeRs 
State Manager, Michelle Coehlo and Direct 
Marketing Manager, Cas Scott receiving 
scholarships at the World Young Credit 
Union People Program.

blue skies
Blue Skies is run by Palliative Care social 
workers, counsellors and volunteers who 
offer grieving children the opportunity to 
participate in a number of fun and creative 
activities to promote healthy grieving.

wa sustainable GaRden 
We are proud to be part of Duncraig 
Childcare Centre’s educational garden 
project that promotes nurturing through 
nature and provides children with education 
through the environment.

vaRiety
We have supported Variety through a 
number of fundraising events to help 
improve the lives of children.

sustAinAbilitYY  
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EMPLOYEE ENGaGEMENT
woRk/liFe balance
It is our mission to create a positive working 
environment for our 598 employees. We 
strongly believe in the importance of work/
life balance and provide a number of leave 
options for our staff to achieve this balance, 
including paid parental leave for male and 
female staff, work/life balance leave, a 
leave purchase scheme, leave without 
pay and community leave. Flexible work 
arrangements in the form of job share, 
working from home and part-time work are 
also available.

eMployee Feedback
Community CPS Australia Limited conducted 
a biennial Staff Survey in October 2011. 
Whilst participation in the survey is optional, 
an 80% response rate was achieved 
indicating a strong commitment by staff 
to provide feedback and participate in 
business improvement. The survey identified 
a number of key strengths and Community 
CPS Australia Limited exceeded external 
benchmarks for the finance and credit union 
sectors in 82% of KPIs measured. 

Opportunities for improvement were also 
identified and comprehensive survey 
feedback and action planning was 
undertaken at a team and corporate level. 

leaRninG and developMent
We are committed to employee development 
through our range of programs that allow 
people to learn and develop at all levels of 
the business and all stages of their careers. 
During 2011/12 financial year, Community 
CPS Australia Limited added to its suite of 
customised e-learning courses to engage 
staff in the following areas: Learning and 
Development at Community CPS, Welcome 
to Community CPS Online Induction, 
Telephone Techniques, Resolve Member 
Complaints, Cheque Law and Building 
Relationships with Members. Our Learning 
Management System has been further 
developed to provide staff with the ability to 
review the training needs for their roles to 
foster a culture of continuous learning.

leadeRship developMent
Community CPS Australia Limited recognised 
the need to place greater emphasis 
on leadership development and talent 
management through the appointment of 
an Organisational Development Manager 
in February 2012. This new role has been 
created with a focus on developing and 
supporting leaders to enable individuals 
to achieve their potential and ensure 
Community CPS Australia Limited builds 
strategic capability.

key indicators 2010/11 2011/12

Total number of 
employees 585 598

Number of Full Time 
Equivalent Positions 472.06 472.09

Staff Engagement 
Score measured 
through annual Staff 
Survey N/A 80%

Staff who took paid 
Parental Leave 20 26

Hours of Work/
Life Balance Leave 
taken by staff 18,822 14,091

Hours of Study 
Leave taken by staff 359 538.43

Hours of Training 
Completed 12,943 18,450

Number of New 
Employees Hired 95 87
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to Assist ouR membeRs in ConseRving nAtuRAl 
ResouRCes, We HAve developed A numbeR of pRoduCts 
WitH feAtuRes to enCouRAge membeRs to be moRe 
enviRonmentAllY Responsible inCluding ouR enviRo 
loAn And e-stAtements seRviCe.

glossARY of teRms  
And ACRonYms

aFsl
Australian Financial Services Licence 
authorises licencees to conduct a financial 
services business, as regulated by ASIC.

apRa
Australian Prudential Regulation Authority.

asic
Australian Securities and Investments 
Commission.

bbsw
Bank Bill Swap Reference Rate is used in 
financial markets as a benchmark for interest 
rate related transactions.

capital adequacy Ratio
A ratio used to measure the prudential 
strength of a financial institution. Prudential 
strength is calculated as total retained 
earnings and other ‘capital’ divided by total 
assets, weighted to reflect the relative risks 
associated with our operations.

consolidated
The combined accounts of Community CPS 
Australia Limited (‘Community CPS’) and its 
controlled entities.

contingent liability
A possible liability that arises from past 
events, the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within Community CPS 
Australia Limited’s control.

controlled entity
An entity for which Community CPS Australia 
Limited influences its decision making, 
to ensure it operates for the benefit of 
Community CPS Australia Limited achieving 
its overall goals and objectives.

deferred tax amounts
Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax 
Liabilities reflect the tax effect of timing 
differences, being items which are brought 
to account in different periods for income tax 
and accounting purposes.

derivative Financial instrument
Derivative Financial Instruments create 
rights and obligations that have the effect 
of transferring between the parties to the 
instrument one or more of the financial risks 
inherent in an underlying primary financial 
instrument, but without the transfer of the 
underlying primary instrument.

equity
The excess of Community CPS Australia 
Limited’s assets over its liabilities, which 
is the amount owned by members. Also 
referred to as Member’s Funds.

Fair value
The amount for which an asset could be 
exchanged, or a liability settled, between 
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s 
length transaction.

Financial instrument
Any contract that gives rise to a financial 
asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

Franking credit
Tax credits arising largely from the payment 
of tax by Community CPS Australia Limited 
that are available for attachment to eligible 
distributions by Community CPS Australia 
Limited to its members.

interest Rate swap
A type of derivative Financial Instrument under 
which Community CPS Australia Limited 
agrees to exchange interest cash flows 
(usually calculated on differing bases) with 
another party for an agreed period of time.

liability
A debt or obligation to another party,  
eg. a savings account held on behalf of a 
Community CPS Australia Limited’s member.

liquid assets
A monetary asset that can be readily 
converted to cash at Community CPS 
Australia Limited’s option and is subject to an 
insignificant change in value.

provisions
An amount set aside out of profits in the 
accounts of Community CPS Australia 
Limited for an expense which has been 
incurred, but the amount and timing of 
payment can only be estimated (eg. long 
service leave or bad debts).

Receivables
Amounts owed by members and other 
external parties for which payment is 
expected soon.

Reserves
The net change in value of revalued assets 
still held (Asset Revaluation Reserve), the 
net change in value of revalued assets 
subsequently sold (Asset Realisation 
Reserve), the Equity transferred to 
Community CPS Australia Limited from 
another credit union upon merger (Transfer 
of Business Reserve) and the value of shares 
redeemed out of retained profits (Redeemed 
Share Reserve).

securitisation
A financing technique whereby one party 
can convert an illiquid asset (such as a 
member’s loan) into a liquid asset (such as 
cash) through the equitable assignment of its 
ownership interest (essentially the sale of the 
liquid asset).



ouR pARent equitY Home loAn WAs designed to AlloW 
pARents, pARents-in-lAW oR step-pARents to Help 
tHeiR CHildRen puRCHAse tHeiR oWn Home bY using 
tHe equitY in tHeiR pRopeRtY.
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Regional Offices

Canberra 105 Mawson Drive, Mawson ACT 2607

Maitland  1/212 High Street Maitland NSW 2320 

Perth 430 Roberts Road, Subiaco WA 6008

Wagga Wagga 141 Peter Street, Wagga Wagga NSW 2650

Community CPS Branches

With 48 branches across the Australian Capital Territory,  
New South Wales, South Australia and Western Australia, 
there is sure to be a branch near you. 

Visit www.communitycps.com.au to find your nearest branch.

Our members have access to over 3,400 ATMs through the 
second largest ATM network in the country, the rediATM network.

Eastwoods Wealth Management and  
Eastwoods Accounting and Taxation

62 The Parade, Norwood SA 5067

BSB 805-022 
ABN 15 087 651 143 
AFSL/Australian Credit Licence 237 856

Bankers

Cuscal Limited 
National Australia Bank Limited

Auditors

KPMG – External 
PricewaterhouseCoopers - Internal

Solicitors

Langes+ 
Norman Waterhouse 
Kelly & Co 
Williams Love & Nicol 
Clayton Utz

Affiliations

Abacus Australian Mutuals 
World Council of Credit Unions 
Credit Union Financial Support System 
Credit Union Foundation Australia


